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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF RHODE ISLAND

UNILEVER BESTFOODS and KIK

TEKNOR APEX COMPANY, et al.,

Defendants.
KIK CUSTOM PRODUCTS, INC., b
f/k/a CCL CUSTOM @ :
MANUFACTURING, INC., CE,

Plaintiff, Q

vS. CI@ACTION NO: 01-511-L
A.T. CROSS COMPANY, eOQ,

Defendants. O

* k%
Deposition of STEPHEN R. MESSINGER,
CIH, ARM, Witness herein, called by the Plaintiffs
for cross-examination pursuant to the Rules of
Civil Procedure, taken before me, Stacey M.
Mortsolf, a Notary Public in and for the State of
Ohio, at the offices of Blank Rome, 1700 PNC
Center, 201 East Fifth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio on

Friday, March 12, 2010, at 9:26 a.m.

Peferson T e, OUL

CUSTOM PRODUCTS, INC., f/k/a /O. &
CCL CUSTOM MANUFACTURING, -
Plaintiffs,
vs. CIVIL ACTION NO. 01-496-L

470531

SDMS DocID

Veritext Corporate Services
800-567-8658
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2
1 EXAMINATIONS CONDUCTED PAGE | 1 On behalf of the Defendant Avnet:
2  BYMR.DANLEY:...ccoecouemeernee 5 2 Smith Moore Leatherwood
3 BYMR.MURPHY ... 241 3 By: Bradley M. Risinger
4 Attorney at Law
5 EXHIBITS MARKED 4 Two Hanover Square, Suite 2800
6  (Thereupon, Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 1, 434 I.:ayetteville Strec?t
7 Plaintiffs' Notice of Deposition of Z Raleigh, North Carolina 27601
8  Defendant General Cable Corp., was - £ % %
9  marked for purposes of 8
10 identification.)......c.cococoeuneeen. 11 9
11 (Thereupon, Plaintiffs' Exhibit 2, 10
12 Notice of Potential Liability and 11
13 Request for Information, was marked 12
14 for purposes of identification.)...... 23 13
15  (Thereupon, Plaintiffs' Exhibit 3, 14
16  Response to Request for Information 15
17  to General Cable Industries, Inc., 16
18  was marked for purposes of L7
19 identification.)........o... 23 ig
20 20
21 21
22 22
23 23
24 24
25 25
3 5
y R tainif Unilever 1 STEPHEN R. MESSINGER, CIH, ARM
| Bestloods. 2 of lawful age, Witness herein, having been first
Baker Botts LLP 3 duly cautioned and sworn, as hereinafter
! By: Christopher Danley 4 certified, was examined and said as follows:
5 Attorney at Law 5 CROSS-EXAMINATION
6 1299 mieéf";sfbwémz Avense, NW. 6 BY MR.DANLEY:
7 7 Q. Could I get you to state your name
B o 8 for the record, please?
,  Manufactring Inc: 9 A. Stephen, with a P H, Robert
Bleakley Platt & Schmidt, LLP 10 Messinger.
T By Jonathan A Murghy 11 Q. Mr. Messinger, on whose behalf are
H puomey r&?m@ on Avente 12 you here today?
12 Whie Plans New York 10601 ppee 13 A. Genergl Cable Industnes., hc. .
Company. 14 Q. What is your current position with
B Benik & Associates 15 the company?
15 By: Gregory L. Beik 16 A. T'm the vice president of risk
16 Attomey at Law 17 management.
. 331 Jeferson Boulevard 18 Q. And how long have you had that
18 Warwick, Rhode Island 02886 19 J obf)
L o :Se;g?‘fwm_e Defendant General Cable 20 A. Fve had that.job approximate?ly
20 Blank Rome LLP 21 ten years in that position. I've been with the
S Fovonlobtyt 22 company seventeen and a half years.
22 One Logan Square 23 Q. We'll come back to your job
23 Philadelphia, Pennsylvanis 19103-6998 24 history in a second. I just wanted to find out
o 25 if you've ever been deposed before.
2 (Pages 2 to 5)
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1 A. Yes, I have, 1 years, correct?
2 Q. Okay. Just to give you a 2 A. Yes.
3 refresher course, here are a couple things that 3 Q. What was your position with the
4 will help us proceed in a smooth manner. If 4 company before that?
5 you need to take a break, just let us know. 5 A. Iwas adirector of environmental
6 A. Thank you. 6 health and safety.
7 Q. Please wait until I finish my 7 Q. And how long did you have that
8 question, and I'll wait till you finish your 8 job?
9 answer, if for no other reason so the court 9 A. About five years.
10 reporter here can get a clean transcript. You 10 Q. And were you responsible for
11 said you had been deposed before. Canyoutell |11 particular plants or the company overall?

12 me, was that in your individual capacity as 12 A. The company overall.
13 yourself? 13 Q. And what was your position at the
14 A. No. 14 company before you were the director of
15 Q. Okay. So you were deposed before 15 environmental health and safety?
16 as acorporate witness? 16 A. Ijoined the company as director
17 A. As a corporate witness and when I 17 of safety.
18 was with the government, as a witness for the 18 Q. You said you've been with the
19 government. 19 company for seventeen and a half years, so you
20 Q. Well, for purposes of this 20 joined the company around 19937
21 deposition, you're not here on your behalf; 21 A. Close. 1992. November 1992.
22 you're here on behalf of General Cable 22 Q. So can you tell me what some job
23 Industries Inc., so when I say you or your, I'm 23 responsibilities are for your current position?
24 referring to General Cable and not you 24 A. Yes. Ihave global responsibility
25 personally. And when I want to ask you a 25 for insurance. I have responsibility for
7 9
1 question in a personal capacity, I'll let you 1 purchasing gas and -- natural gas and power for
2 know, okay? 2 North America. I have responsibilities on our
3 MR. COBURN: You can answer. 3 merger and acquisition team to provide
4 THE WITNESS: Yes. 4 expertise in environmental health and safety
5 MR. COBURN: Chris, real quick, 5 and insurance. I have responsibility for
6 just -- you mentioned General Cable Industries, 6 workers' compensation in North America. I have
7 Inc., and then referenced it as General Cable. As 7 responsibility for -- direct responsibility for
8 you know, obviously, General Cable Corps. was the 8 environmental health and safety in North
9 entity that was first sued. There's been a motion 9 America and dotted line, I guess, as the
10 for substitution that was granted. Ijust want to 10 technical expert for global.
11 clarify that when you're referring to General 11 Q. What company did you work with
12  Cable, are you referring to General Cable 12 before joining General Cable?
13 Industries, Inc., or General Cable, the entire 13 A. Sumitomo Sitex.
14  entity? 14 Q. Can you spell that, please, as
15 MR. DANLEY: Scott, excellent point. 15 best you can?
16 When I say General Cable, I'll be referring to the 16 A. SUMITOMO,SITEX.
17 currently named defendant in this action, General 17 Q. Where was the --
18 Cable Industries, Inc. 18 A. OrC.
19 MR. COBURN: Okay. 19 Q. I'msorry.
20 THE WITNESS: Iunderstand. Thank 20 A. XorC. I forget which one.
21 you. 21 Q. Where was this company located at?
22 BY MR.DANLEY: 22 A. Maineville, Ohio.
23 Q. Let's get back to your job 23 Q. And what was your job at this
24 history. You said that you've been the vice 24 company?
25 president for risk management for the last ten 25 A. T was environmental health and

3 (Pages 6 t0 9)
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10 12

1 safety manager. 1 A. Yes.

2 Q. For how long? 2 Q. Can you tell me who you -- can you

3 A. Six years. 3 tell me who you talked with at the company,

4 Q. Did you work somewhere else before 4 excluding counsel, in order to prepare for

5 joining this company? 5 today's deposition?

6 A. Yes. I worked for Cincinnati 6 A. Yes.

7 Milacron in Cincinnati, Ohio. MILACRON. | 7 Q. Can you please tell me who those

8 Q. And what did you do for this 8 people are?

9 company? 9 A. Ispoke with Cathy Rademacher,
10 A. I 'was the health and safety 10 RADEMACHER. Ispoke with Mike
11 manager. 11 Sharkey, SHARKEY. Ispoke with Rick
12 Q. For how long? 12 Flaxington, FL A XIN G TON, and I spoke
13 A. For six years. 13 with Robert Vallier, VALLIER. And1
14 Q. Did you work anywhere before 14 spoke with counsel. He's not a General Cable
15 joining Cincinnati Milacron? 15 employee.

16 A. Yes. 16 Q. Can you tell me in the aggregate

17 Q. Where? 17 how long you talked to those people?

18 A. I'worked for the Occupational 18 A. 1spoke with Cathy Rademacher in

19 Safety and Health Administration. 19 aggregate for five to ten minutes.

20 Q. In what location? 20 Q. What about --

21 A. InBaton Rouge, Louisiana, and 21 A I-

22 Cincinnati, Ohio. 22 Q. I'msorry. Go abead.

23 Q. What was your job title at OSHA? 23 A. Oh, go ahead.

24 A. Industrial hygiene compliance 24 Q. Mike Sharkey?

25 officer. 25 A. Mike Sharkey in aggregate fifteen.
11 13

1 Q. How long in total were you an 1 Q. Rick Flaxington?

2 employee of OSHA? 2 A. Two minutes, one minute, two

3 A. Six years. 3 minutes.

4 Q. Did you hold any other jobs at 4 Q. And Robert Vallier?

5 OSHA before becoming an industrial hygiene 5 A. In aggregate ten -- ten to twelve

6 compliance officer? 6 minutes.

7 A. No. 7 Q. Did any of the people you just

8 Q. Did you work anyplace else before 8 mentioned work at any of the plants identified

9 joining OSHA? 9 in the deposition notice?

10 A. No full-time positions. When I 10 A. Yes.

11 was going to college, you know, just part-time 11 Q. Can you tell me who worked where?
12 like at a nursing home, that type of thing. 12 A. Yes. Well, first of all -- we'll

13 Q. Okay. So would it be fair to say 13 talk about all four. Cathy Rademacher did not.
14 that OSHA was your first full-time job out of 14 She's at the headquarters. Mike Sharkey did
15 college? 15 not. He joined the company 1999 approximately.
16 A. That would be fair. 16 Bob Vallier and Rick Flaxington work at the
17 {Thereupon, Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1, 17 Lincoln, Rhode Island, facility.

18 Plaintiffs' Notice of Deposition of Defendant 18 Q. Do you know how long that Rick

19 General Cable Corp., was marked for purposes of |19 Flaxington has been working at the Lincoln,
20 identification.) 20 Rhode Island, facility?

21 BY MR.DANLEY: 21 A. Not exactly, no.

22 Q. I'm going to give you what's 22 Q. Has he been working there for ten
23 marked as Exhibit 1. That's the deposition 23 years?

24 notice for today's deposition. Have you seen 24 A. Twould say approximately ten

25 that before? 25 years at the Lincoln, Rhode Island, facility.

4 (Pages 10 to 13)
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14 16
1 Q. Did he work in another position in 1 (Thereupon, an off-the-record
2 General Cable before the -- working in the 2 discussion was had.)
3 Lincoln, Rhode Island, facility? 3 BY MR. DANLEY:
4 A. Yes. 4 Q. Did you produce any other -- I'm
5 Q. Where? 5 sormry. Did you review any other documents
6 A. Idon't recall. 6 besides those documents you just mentioned?
7 Q. Can you tell me which facility 7 MR. COBURN: Mr. Messinger, I'm just
8 that Robert Vallier works at? 8 going to ask you to the extent that you reviewed
9 A. Lincoln, Rhode Island. 9 any documents that were privileged, meaning either
10 Q. Can you tell me how long he's been 10 attorney/client communications or attorney/client
11  working at the Lincoln, Rhode Island, facility? {11 work product, I'll instruct you not to answer. To
12 A. Since -- since the early '90s, I 12 the extent you reviewed any documents outside of
13 believe. 13 those two categories, to the extent you can
14 MR. MURPHY: Did you say early? 14 recall, answer.
15 THE WITNESS: Early. Yes, sir. 15 MR. DANLEY: Let me withdraw the
16 BY MR. DANLEY: 16 question, and I'll ask another way.
17 Q. Do you know if he was a General 17 BY MR. DANLEY:
18 Cable employee before joining the Lincoln 18 Q. Did you review any other General
19 facility? 19 Cable documents in preparation for today's
20 A. No, [ don't. 20 deposition?
21 Q. Can you tell me if you reviewed 21 A. Yes.
22 documents to prepare for today's deposition? 22 Q. What documents were those?
23 A. Yes, 1 did. 23 A. Treviewed a material safety data
24 Q. Can you tell me what documents 24  sheet for a rubber compound and for a PVC
25 those were? 25 compound.
15 17
1 A. Ireviewed the 104(e) request and 1 Q. Were these two different types of
2 response and attachments. I reviewed the 2 documents, one for the rubber compound and one
3 environmental documents. There were three of 3 for the PVC compound?
4 them, I believe, or four from the early '90s. 4 A. Yes.
5 One, I think, from RCA and one Burlington. And 5 Q. Can you remember the time frame of
6 Idon't recall who the other one was for, but 6 either of these documents, when they were --
7 those were provided a day or two ago. 7 when they were dated?
8 Q. Do you have those four documents 8 A. They were current documents. 1
9 here with you now? 9 wanted to refresh my memory on the composition
10 A. No, I donot. 10 of the rubber products and the PVC products, so
11 Q. So tell me a little bit more about 11 they were probably within the last year or two.
12 these four documents. Can you just briefly 12 Q. Would it be fair to say that the
13 describe what types of documents they were? 13 MSDS for rubber compounds that you reviewed
14 MR. COBURN: I think maybe I can 14  would reflect the composition of rubber
15 short circuit this. 15 compounds used at General Cable facilities in
16 MR. DANLEY: Please. 16 the past?
17 MR. COBURN: Ibelieve  and maybe 17 MR. COBURN: Objection. Can you
18 the witness can tell me if 'm wrong. I think 18 clarify the time period?
19 he's referring to the documents you all produced 19 BYMR. DANLEY:
20 this week. 20 Q. And when I say - I'm going to
21 MR. DANLEY: So the documents that we {21 use - I'll withdraw the question so we can --
22 produced? 22 Icantell you how I'm going to use a certain
23 MR. COBURN: Yes. 23 term. I want to refer to — there's a term in
24 MR. DANLEY: So there's -- can we go 24 your deposition notice on page four, and it's
25 off the record for a second? 25 number paragraph four, and it says relevant

5 (Pages 14 to 17)
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18 20
1 period. It means the period between 1 plant. I would like a clarification, please.
2 January 1st, 1954, and January Ist, 1986. So 2 Q. Sure.
3 when I say the relevant period, that's the time 3 A. When you say the compounds, they
4 frame I'm referring to. 4 use the rubber compounds to make wire or cable,
5 A. Thank you. I understand. 5 and so to the extent that they used the rubber
6 Q. Would it be fair to say that the 6 compound to make booster cable, those -- the
7 material safety data sheet that you reviewed 7 booster cable would have been used at Warren,
8 for rubber compounds accurately reflects the 8 Rhode Island. So that was why I hesitated when
9 composition of rubber compounds that General 9 responding. The raw materials were not used,
10 Cable used in the relevant period? 10 but it was the finished rubber product was
11 MR. COBURN: Let's go offtherecord {11 assembled at Warren.
12 real quick. 12 Q. Thank you. Were these type of
13 {(Thereupon, an off-the-record 13 rubber compounds used at the Central Falls
14 discussion was had.) 14 facility?
15 (Record read.) 15 A. Idon't have any knowledge of
16 BY MR.DANLEY: 16 Central Falls.
17 Q. Allright. Would it be fair to 17 Q. Were these type of rubber
18 say that the composition of the rubber 18 compounds used at the Taunton, Massachusetts,
19 compounds as listed in the materials safety 19 facility?
20 data sheets that you reviewed accurately 20 A. No.
21 reflect the content of the rubber compounds 21 Q. Would it be fair to say that the
22 used at the facilities listed in the deposition 22 material safety data sheet for PVC compound
23 notice? 23 that you reviewed for today's deposition
24 A. No. 24 accurately reflects the composition of PVC
25 Q. And why do you say that? 25 compound used at the Pawtucket facility during
19 21
1 A. Over the years, the company's -- 1 the relevant period?
2 the rubber products produced at the Lincoln 2 A. Idon't know.
3 facility have changed. There were -- there was 3 Q. Would you be able to answer if |
4 alot of styrene-butadiene rubber produced 4 substituted the Lincoln, Rhode Island,
5 earlier, and then there was CPE rubber, 5 facility, for the Pawtucket facility?
6 chlorinated polyethylene rubber produced, and 6 A. Yes. Ithink I can clarify for
7  then there's EPDM rubber produced a lot now, 7 you, PVC was produced at Taunton. PVC was not
8 and we still produce CPE. EPDM is ethylene 8 produced at Lincoln, Rhode Island.
9 propylene diene monomer rubber. What is fair 9 Q. Do you know if PVC was produced at
10 to say is that the general composition, filler, 10 the Warren facility?
11 polymer, oil, and additives, is representative. 11 A. It would be a similar answer to
12 MR. MURPHY: Off the record. 12 the one I gave for -- when we talked about
13 (Thereupon, an off-the-record 13 rubber. It was compounded at the Taunton
14 discussion was had.) 14 facility. Products that were PVC cable were
15 BY MR.DANLEY: 15 assembled at -- well, they weren't assembled at
16 Q. Do you know if these rubber 16 Pawtucket. The compound was extruded onto the
17 compounds were used at the Pawtucket facilities }17 cable to produce plastic wire at Pawtucket.
18  or the Pawtucket facility? 18 Q. Do you know if PVC was produced at
19 A. Tdon't have any knowledge that 19 the Central Falls facility during the relevant
20 they were. 20 period?
21 Q. Do you know if these type of 21 A. Idon't have any knowledge of
22 rubber compounds were used at the Warren 22 that.
23 facility? 23 Q. Let's talk about the Central Falls
24 A. Tdo not believe they were used at 24 facility.
25 the Warren facility. That was an assembly 25 A. Okay.

6 (Pages 18 to 21)
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numbers for documents since it seems to be the
easiest way to get everybody on the same page.

A. Sure.

Q. Can you turn to GC191, please?

A. Okay.

Q. And I'm going to ask you to look
at Exhibit 2. Exhibit 2 is requests for
information from EPA to General Cable, and the
reason I'm using this exhibit is because it
asks certain questions, and Exhibit 3 contains
the answers. Sometimes you don't know what
that document is necessarily answering. So
it's helpful --

A. Sure.

Q. --to look at both documents
sometimes. So for Exhibit 2, if you could turn
to GC334.

A. Okay.

Q. And you see on Exhibit 2 at GC334,
at the top it says information request
questions?

A. Okay.

Q. And then you'll -- I believe -- I
don't see a number anywhere. [ would have to
assume that the question on the first page is

22
1 Q. Do you know what types of products 1
2 were produced at Central Falls during the 2
3 relevant period? 3
4 A. No, I donot. 4
5 Q. Do you know how many buildings 5
6 comprised the Central Falls facility? 6
7 A. No, [ donot. 7
8 Q. Was the Central Falls facility an 8
9 operation when General Cable acquired it in 9
10 19 -- when General Cable acquired it? 10
11 A. Central Falls, I believe, closed 11
12 inthe late '80s. General Cable was spun off 12
13  from Penn Central in 1992. That's the year I 13
14 joined General Cable. The facility had already |14
15 been closed by -- by that time. So there 15
16 weren't -- there weren't any -- I didn't have 16
17 any involvement with it, and there weren'tany |17
18 ongoing issues that were being managed or 18
19 anything. It was closed. 19
20 Q. Did anybody you spoke with to 20
21 prepare for today's deposition have information |21
22 on the Central Falls facility? 22
23 A. 1 don'trecall -- oh, of the four 23
24 people I spoke to? 24
25 Q. Yes. 25
23
1 A. No. Ididn't -1 didn't ask 1
2 about it either. 2
3 Q. Do you know what types of raw 3
4  materials were used at the Central Falls 4
5 facility during the relevant period? 5
6 A. No, Idonot. 6
7 (Thereupon, Plaintiffs' Exhibit 2, 7
8 Notice of Potential Liability and Request for 8
9 Information, was marked for purposes of 9
10 identification.) 10
11 (Thereupon, Plaintiffs' Exhibit 3, 11
12 Response to Request for Information to General 12
13 Cable Industries, Inc., was marked for purposes of |13
14 identification.) 14
15 BY MR. DANLEY: 15
16 Q. Can you turn to -- on Exhibit 3 16
17 now? That's right here. 17
18 A. Sure. 18
19 Q. And if you look at the front page, 19
20 we've produced these documents. You'll see a 20
21 GC, which stands for General Cable, and then 21
22 I'm going to omit the zeros. 186. Do you see 22
23  that? 23
24 A. Yes, Ido. 24
25 Q. I'm going to refer to those 25

25

the first question.

(Thereupon, an off-the-record
discussion was had.)
BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. So looking back to Exhibit 3 on
GC191, you'll see -- do you see paragraph E at
the bottom that displays the Central Falls
facility location?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. And if you could turn the page,
please, there's Roman Numeral 1 at the top
for -- it's paragraph a ii. Do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. And then if you -- if you go to
Exhibit 2 and you see the question a ii, it
states for each Carol Cable facility, provide a
brief description of the types of work
performed but not limited to the industrial
chemical or institutional processes undertaken.
And can you review the response by General
Cable to that question for the Central Falls
facility to let me know if you have any reason
to dispute that statement?

A. Thave no -- I had no personal
involvement or direct knowledge of the

7 (Pages 22 to 25)
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1 facility, but I do not have any reason to, you 1 bigger cable.
2 know, dispute it. 2 Q. Can you give me an example of the
3 Q. Do you have any further 3 bigger piece of equipment you're referring to?
4 information that you could add to that 4 A. It'd be something to power a
5 statement? 5 milling machine, a lathe - you know, a big
6 A. No, I donot. 6 lathe, whatever kind of -- big motor,
7 Q. The very last sentence in that 7 industrial equipment.
8 paragraph where it states it may also have 8 Q. And you refer to booster cable.
9 assembled ignition wire, do you know why 9 Would that be for automobiles?
10 General Cable would have stated that? 10 A. Yes. That'd be to jump -- you
11 A. No. 11 know, if a battery dies to jump the car.
12 Q. Let's talk about the Lincoln 12 Jumper cables, some people refer to that as
13 facility. 13 opposed to booster cable.
14 A. Okay. 14 Q. Did the Lincoln facility during
15 Q. Information about the Lincoln 15 1975 through 1986 produce extension cords?
16 facility starts in Exhibit 3 on page GC188. 16 A. Yes, I believe it did.
17 Was the Lincoln facility built in 1975? 17 Q. Do you know if there were any
18 A. To the best of my knowledge, yes. 18 other products produced at the Lincoln facility
19 Q. Do you know when the Lincoln 19 from 1975 to 19867
20 facility began operations? 20 A. Ibelieve ignition wire was
21 A. No, Idonot. It was built in 21 produced there. Again, you know, I did not
22 1975. Assoon as construction was completed, 122 have any personal involvement at that time
23 it would have been started. 23 because it was before I joined the company in
24 Q. Do you know what types of products 24 1992, but based on my knowledge of the process
25 were produced at the Lincoln facility from 1975 |25 and the operations, it's what I believe to be
27 29
1 to1986? 1 the case.
2 A. My understanding is that they 2 Q. Is the Lincoln facility still in
3 produced mining cords, industrial cords, 3 operation?
4 automotive ignition wire, booster cable -- 4 A. Yes, it is.
5 that's jumper -- jumper cables like for a 5 Q. Do you know the volume of these
6 Dbattery jumper, mining cable. 6 types of products that were produced at the
7 Q. What is mining cable? Are mining 7 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986 on a monthly
8 cords and mining cable the same thing? 8 basis?
9 A. Yes. 9 A. No, I donot.
10 Q. What is that? 10 Q. Ifyou wanted to - if you
11 A. 1It's a cable that has special 11 personally wanted to determine the volume of
12 properties, you know, that's -- that it's 12 products produced during this time frame, what
13 abrasion resistant and, I believe, acid 13 documents would you review?
14 resistant. It, you know, is suitable for a 14 MR. COBURN: Objection. You can
15 mining environment. 15 answer if you know.
16 Q. And when you mentioned industrial 16 THE WITNESS: I have no idea.
17 cords, can you tell me a little bit more about 17 BY MR. DANLEY:
18 that? 18 Q. Do you know who may know the
19 A. Industrial cords are cords that 19 answer to my question?
20 power large pieces of equipment or machinery. 20 A. Perhaps a plant manager or
21 So where you would use, you know, an extension |21 somebody in operations.
22 cord in your home -- obviously, the power 22 Q. Were the products that you just
23 required to start a - or to run a, you know, 23 mentioned being produced at the Lincoln
24 big motor or big piece of equipment needs to be 24 facility products that were sold to third
25 more robust and carry more current, so it's a 25 parties?
8 (Pages 26 to 29)
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1 A. Yes, 1 question. What other types of substances made
2 Q. Do you know if there may be sales 2 up the rubber compounds used at the Lincoln
3 records that reflect the volume of product that 3 facility from 1975 to 1986?
4 was sold from the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 4 A. Again, I don't have any direct
5 19867 5  knowledge, but my understanding is that rubber
6 A. Idon't have any -- [ don't have 6 compounds typically contain the filler
7 any idea. 7 percentage I mentioned, the polymer percentage,
8 Q. Let's talk about the types of all 8 and the remaining ten percent consisted of
9 materials that are used to make these different 9 oils, additives, stabilizers, antioxidants.
10 types of cords and cables. Can you tell me 10 Q. Anything else?
11 generally what were those types of raw products |11 A. That's all that comes to mind
12 used at the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867 |12 right now.
13 A. Again, I do not have direct 13 Q. You mentioned oils as making up
14  knowledge of that, but it's my understanding 14 the remaining generally ten percent. What
15 that the rubber compounds would have -- would |15 types of oils would you be referring to?
16 have been composed of filler. Fifty, sixty 16 A. Currently plasticizers,
17 percent of a mix in the Banbury mixer that 17 plasticizer oil or it might be an olefinic oil.
18 makes the rubber would be fillers. Those 18 I'mnot sure what type of oil was used during
19 fillers would be predominantly clays, calcium 19 the relevant period, but those are the types of
20 carbonate or magnesium silicate, kaolin, 20 oils that are used now.
21 K AOLIN,clay fillers. Then there would 21 Q. And, generally, what percentage of
22 have been maybe thirty percent -- up to thirty 22 the ten percent would oils comprise?
23 percent polymer, which would have been the 23 A. The majority.
24 rubber polymer -- 24 Q. A substantial majority or a slight
25 Q. Can1 stop you really quick? 25 majority?
31 33
1 A. Yes. 1 MR. COBURN: Objection. Canyou
2 Q. For the fillers, what percentage 2 clarify substantial and slight?
3 did you give as that component comprising the 3 BY MR. DANLEY:
4 rubber compounds? 4 Q. Nine percent?
5 A. Mayhe fifty, sixty percent. 5 A. Again, I'm not a rubber - a
6 Q. And then what percentage did you 6 rubber chemist so I would believe by weight,
7 give for the rubber polymers? 1 cut you off, 7 probably would be greater than five percent,
8 and as I did, I didn't remember what you said. 8 maybe up to nine percent. Idon't have that
9 A. Isaid up to thirty percent. And 9 direct -- you know, direct knowledge.
10 I'm not a rubber chemist, but this is just a 10 Q. You mentioned additives comprising
11 general description of what's in a rubber 11 part of these rubber compounds. Can you tell
12 compound. 12 me what types of additives were used at the
13 Q. And when you talk about rubber 13 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867
14 polymers, what types of substances would make 14 A. Again, I don't have any direct
15 up rubber polymers? 15 knowledge because that was before I was
16 A. Tt would have been the three types 16 employed, and I don't have any records that I
17  of rubber I mentioned earlier, 17 could review for that, but I think that there
18 styrene-butadiene or chlorinated polyethylene 18 would have been lead.
19 or--Idon't believe it was produced until 19 Q. Anything -
20 more recently, but the EPDM. 20 A. There --
21 Q. Do you know when EPDM started 21 Q. --else--
22 comprising part of the rubber polymers? 22 A. --would have been -
23 A. No, I donot. 23 Q. I'msorry.
24 Q. What other types of substances 24 A. --lead. Lead. Yeah, there would
25 make up rubber compounds? Let me withdraw that |25 have been lead. There may have -- there would
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1 have been carbon black. There would have 1 into a booster cable because there wouldn't be

2 been -- there would have been a curing agent, 2 alogical reason. It would add cost and you

3 and the curing agent would have been a sulfur 3 wouldn't need to design that cable or

4 compound historically. That's to the best of 4 manufacture the cable to that, you know -- to

5 my knowledge. Now, with the EPDM rubber, we 5 survive in that kind of environment.

6 use a dicumyl catalyst that cross links the 6 Q. Are you able to explain the

7 rubber. Ido not believe that that was used 7 differences in the rubber compounds for all the

8 during the relevant period. 8 different types of products manufactured at the

9 Q. Do you know if any other types of 9 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986?

10 substances made up the additives used at the 10 A. No, I'm not.
11 Lincoln facility other than the ones you just 11 Q. Are you able to explain the
12 mentioned? 12 difference in any of the products in terms of
13 A. Those are the ones that come to 13 the rubber compound that was used at the
14 mind. 14 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867
15 Q. You mentioned stabilizers as 15 A. No, [ am not.
16 comprising part of the rubber compounds at the 16 Q. For stabilizers, you mentioned
17 Lincoln facility. Can you tell me what type of 17 that lead and a zinc compound were within that
18 substances are within the category of 18 category. Are there any other types of
19 stabilizers? 19 substances that were used as stabilizers at the
20 A. Lead would have been a stabilizer. 20 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986?
21 Perhaps zinc compound. One thing that is 21 A. Again, this is outside my area of
22 important to understand is that the Lincoln 22 expertise, not being a rubber chemist. I'm
23 plant produced a variety of rubber products, 23 not -- I'm not aware of any, but there may have
24 and -- or I said rubber products -- I'll say 24 been.
25 cables, cords. And the cables were for -- you 25 Q. You mentioned that antioxidants
35 37

1 know, a mining cable may have a different 1 were used or antioxidants comprised part of the

2 composition than a -- you know, than a cable -- 2 rubber compound used at the Lincoln facility.

3 anindustrial cable or a cable used -- and 3 Canyou tell me what types of substances would

4  definitely than a booster cable. So when 1 4 be within that category?

5 comment on the composition or what additives, 5 A. Idon'trecall any -- I don't

6 they would vary or would have varied by the 6 recall any specifics. | know that the rubber

7 type of rubber batch for the type of product 7 compounds had antioxidants in small amounts,

8 that was being produced. And I did not have 8 but I - I don't recall specific antioxidant.

9 direct knowledge of that, so what my knowledge | 9 Q. Other than rubber compounds, what
10 is really based on is what we do, you know, 10 other types of raw materials were used at the
11 what we've done more recently. 11 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867
12 Q. What would be the difference in 12 A. It's my understanding, although I
13 the rubber compounds used to make industrial 13 have no, you know, direct knowledge, that the
14 cords as compared to rubber compounds used to |14 facility produced ignition wires. Ignition
15 make booster cables? 15 wire would be a silicone wire with fiberglass
16 A. I'm not a rubber chemist so I 16 core and maybe a conductive coating. Ido
17 don't know the -- I don't know what the exact 17 not - they did not make the compounds to the
18 difference would be. I know that a mining 18 best of my knowledge of that. They -- they --
19 cable would have to hold up to, you know, an 19 but I'm not sure.

20 acidic highly abrasive environment, where a 20 Q. Other than rubber compounds, what
21 booster cable is going to be in the trunk of 21 other types of raw material were used at the
22 your car until you pull it out and need it. So 22 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986?

23 from a manufacturing standpoint, you wouldn't |23 A. Canl get a clarification, please?

24 put maybe the additives that you would need for {24 Q. Yes.

25 abooster cable in -- I mean a mining cable 25 A. Are you speaking of the compounds
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1 that would have been used also to run the 1 have used -- again, no direct knowledge, but
2 facility such as gear box oil or are you 2 most plants at that time used a SpeedyDry or a
3 speaking of, you know, raw materials that would 3 clay compound to soak up -- soak up a spill,
4 have been used to make a rubber compound or 4 soak up oil. Those compounds, there were a lot
5 a-- some other compound. 5 of different products. Some were -- depending
6 Q. Both, but for now let's stick with 6 on what you wanted to pay, some were more
7 raw materials used to make the products. 7 absorbant than others, you know. Some were
8 A. Okay. My knowledge -- my 8 paper based. Some may have been clay based.
9 understanding is that the Lincoln plant was a, 9 Q. Why were oils used at the Lincoln
10 quote, rubber plant, and so that most 10 facility from 1975 to 1986?
11 everything they did with the exception of 11 MR. COBURN: Oils other than -- other
12 ignition wires was -- producing ignition wire 12 than plasticizer oils that he's already testified
13  involved both the Banbury and it involved 13 about?
14 rubber products. So the raw materials I 14 MR. DANLEY: Let me withdraw the
15 discussed would have been the raw materials 15 question.
16 used in making batches of rubber. 16 BY MR. DANLEY:
17 Q. What types of raw materials were 17 Q. Why were oils used to run the
18 used to run the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 18 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867
19 19867 19 MR. COBURN: Objection. You can
20 A. The Lincoln facility would have 20 answer.
21 had oils. The Lincoln facility would have had 21 THE WITNESS: Okay. There would have
22 paint. The Lincoln facility would have had 22  been a large boiler at Lincoln, so you would have
23 inks. The Lincoln facility would have had 23  had number four or number six fuel oil and, you
24 degreasing solvent. The Lincoln facility would {24 know, in the tank that fueled the, you know --
25 have had, I would say, paint for -- to paint 25 provided the heat source for the boiler. You
39 41
1 equipment or -- 1 would have had oil -- gear oil or gear box oil
2 Q. Letme -- 2 because you would have large -- large equipment.
3 A. -~ walls or whatever. 3 Say large equipment, you have what are called
4 Q. So the paint was used to paint the 4 take-ups to wind the cable as it's extruded, and
5 walls or equipment? 5 cable's heavy so that would have, you know, large
6 A. Or put a stripe on the floor to 6 gear boxes and gear oil. Anything that has a
7 mark an aisle, that kind of thing. 7 drive has to -- you know, has to have oil. Oil
8 Q. Other than oils, paint, inks, and 8 would have been used in the Banbury incidental to
9 degreasing solvent, what other types of raw 9 the process because they had - I believe they had
10 materials were used at the Lincoln facility 10 an oil-less seal at the time. Again, I'm not
11 from 1975 to 1986? 11 speaking from direct knowledge. It's based on my
12 A. There would have been welding -- 12  understanding.
13 welding sticks for stick welding or tack 13 BY MR. DANLEY:
14 welding. There would have been solder -- well, 14 Q. And for the Lincoln facility,
15 no, not much solder. I think that's 15 you've referenced that your knowledge is based
16 predominantly what the main products, you know, (16 on your understanding. What does that mean?
17 would have been. There would have been, I'm 17 A. It means that my knowledge during
18 sure, you know, soap for the rest rooms and 18 seventeen years of -~ with General Cable of the
19 something to -~ something to clean the 19 industrial process, my knowledge as an
20 bathrooms and, you know, those type of -- type 20 industrial hygienist of industrial processes,
21 of things just to maintain the facility, maybe 21  you know, inspecting plants with OSHA, seeing
22 something to clean the windows with. 22 all sorts of industrial processes, my review of
23 Q. Would they have used something to 23 the documents I referenced earlier, the one for
24 clean up spills with? 24 your response and the environmental reports, my
25 A. Good point. They probably would 25 knowledge of process.
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1 Q. Can you tell me why inks were used 1 source and the welding stick to adhere two

2 to run the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867 2 pieces of metal together. It might have been

3 A. Yes. 3 used to tack welding, or stick welding's

4 Q. Please tell me. 4 common, and you use it to put up a guard rail

5 A. Wire and cable -- wire and cable 5 or -- or, you know, join some -- join two

6 has to be marked every -- every X number of 6 pieces of metal together, just general facility

7 inches, depending on the product, with -- to 7  maintenance.

8 identify it. There are requirements for 8 Q. Do you know if the welding sticks

9 Underwriters Lab, UL, for electrical safety and 9 were disposed of at the Lincoln facility?
10 for what not where you have to indicate or 10 A. The welding sticks weren't -- are
11 identify the cable and the manufacturer. 1 11 consumed during the weld. They're worth money
12 don't know what the specific interval, if it's 12 soyoudon't dispose of them.
13 a foot or three feet, and what it was back 13 Q. You mentioned that solder was used
14 then, but the inks were used in perhaps a print |14 as a raw material to run the Lincoln facility.
15 wheel or -- I don't know when ink jets, 15 Can you tell me what solder is?
16 sprayers, came on. But probably back then it 16 MR. COBURN: Objection. You can
17 would have been an ink wheel that -- that 17 answer.
18 rolled the information on, and that's what it 18 THE WITNESS: I have -- I have no
19 would have been used for. 19  direct knowledge and I meant to retract that. I
20 Q. So the ink -- the wheel would have 20 was thinking of joining two pieces of metal and
21 been fed with ink and that would have marked 21 solders are typically more used in an assembly --
22 the cable or wire at different intervals? 22 the electronic assembly, which wasn't done at
23 A. Right. 23 Lincoln. So most -- I'm sure you might find coil
24 Q. Canyou tell me why degreasing 24 solder like you have in your house if you have the
25 solvents were used to run the Lincoln facility? |25 solder -- a little solder iron to join something

43 45

1 MR. COBURN: Objection. 1 inthe maintenance department, but it wasn't

2 THE WITNESS: Again -- 2 any -- it would have been exceptionally minor if

3 MR. COBURN: You can answer if you | 3 it did exist.

4 know. 4 BY MR. DANLEY:

5 THE WITNESS: -- I have no direct 5 Q. Do you know if there were spills

6 knowledge, but in general industrial facilities 6 of oil that were used to run the Lincoln

7 had, you know -- most plants have a small 7 facility at that facility from 1975 to 1986?

8 maintenance area, and they have, you know, a 8 MR. COBURN: Objection. You can

9 small -- a small degreasing stand that has 9 answer.
10 stoddard solvent or mineral spirits used to 10 THE WITNESS: I have no direct
11 degrease small parts when you do machine 11 knowledge of there being spills.
12 maintenance. So I'm not speaking from direct 12 BY MR. DANLEY:
13 knowledge, but it would be a reasonable 13 Q. Inyour years as working as
14 assumption. 14 environmental health and safety employee, are
15 BY MR. DANLEY: 15 there generally spills at facilities the size
16 Q. So would it be fair to say these 16 of the Lincoln facility?
17 degreasing solvents were used to maintain the 17 MR. COBURN: Objection. You can
18 equipment at the Lincoln facility? 18 answer.
19 A. Yes. 19 THE WITNESS: Yes. Any time you
20 Q. You mentioned that welding sticks 20 handle a liquid over a period of time, there are
21 were used at the Lincoln facility. Can you 21 occasional spills.
22 tell me what that is? 22 BY MR. DANLEY:
23 A. [If you have stick welding, you 23 Q. And you mentioned earlier that
24 would use -- I'm not sure of the compositionof {24 SpeedyDry may have been used at the Lincoln
25 the welding stick, but you would have the heat |25 facility to clean up any types of spills,
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1 correct? 1 was used to run the Lincoln facility was
2 A. Yes. 2 delivered to that facility from 1975 to 19867
3 Q. Do you know how the SpeedyDry 3 A. No, Ido not.
4 would have been disposed of at the Lincoln 4 Q. Do you know how the additives that
5 facility from 1975 to 19867 5 were used to make up the rubber compound were
6 A. No, I don't. 6 delivered to the Lincoln facility from 1975 to
7 Q. Let's return to the raw materials 7 19867
8 used at the Lincoln facility. Let's start with 8 A. No, Idonot.
9 rubber compounds. I'm interested in how these 9 Q. Do you know how the stabilizers
10 raw materials were delivered to the facility 10 that comprised the rubber compounds at the
11 from 1975 to 1986. Can you tell me how the 11 Lincoln facility were delivered to that
12 fillers were delivered to the Lincoln facility 12 facility from 1975 to 19867
13  from 1975 to 19867 13 A. No, Idonot.
14 A. Thave no — I have no direct 14 Q. Do you know how the antioxidants
15 knowledge of it. It would -- fillers typically 15 that comprised part of the rubber compounds
16 would have been delivered in fifty-pound or 16 were delivered to the Lincoln facility from
17 hundred-pound sacks or bags, sacks, bags, that |17 1975 to 1986?
18 were on a skid or pallet. 18 A. No, I donot.
19 Q. Do you know how the rubber 19 Q. You mentioned that ignition wire
20 polymers were delivered to the Lincoln facility {20 was a type of raw material that was used at the
21 from 1975 to 19867 21 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986, is that
22 A. No, Idonot. 22 right?
23 Q. Do you know how the oils that were 23 MR. COBURN: Objection. It misstates
24 used in the rubber compounds were delivered to |24  his testimony. You can answer.
25 the facility - the Lincoln facility from 1975 25 THE WITNESS: 1 believe I indicated
47 49
1 to 19867 1 that ignition wire was one of the products they
2 A. No, I do not. 2 produced as opposed to a raw material.
3 Q. Do you know how the oils that were 3 BY MR.DANLEY:
4 used to run the Lincoln facility were delivered 4 Q. And can you tell me again what
5 to that facility from 1975 to 1986? 5 types of raw materials comprise the ignition
6 MR. COBURN: Objection. You can 6 wire that was produced at the Lincoln facility?
7  answer. 7 A. Tbelieve it's a silicone material
8 THE WITNESS: No, I do not. 8 with -- with a fiberglass core and a conductive
9 BY MR.DANLEY: 9 coating.
10 Q. Do you know how the paint that was 10 Q. And when you say conductive
11 used to maintain the Lincoln facility was 11 coating, what does that mean?
12 delivered to that facility from 1975 to 19867 12 A. Ido not have -~ I don't have
13 MR. COBURN: Objection. 13  enough technical knowledge of that to be able
14 THE WITNESS: No, I do not. 14 to comment on it.
15 BY MR. DANLEY: 15 Q. Do you know how the silicone wire
16 Q. Do you know how the ink that was 16 was delivered to the Lincoln facility from 1975
17 used to run the Lincoln facility was delivered 17 to 19867
18 to that facility from 1975 to 19867 18 A. No, I do not.
19 A. No, Idonot. 19 Q. Do you know how the fiberglass
20 Q. Do you know how the degreasing 20 core was delivered to the Lincoln facility from
21 solvent that was used to run the Lincoln 21 1975 to 19867
22 facility was delivered to that facility from 22 A. No, Ido not.
23 1975 to 19867 23 Q. Do you know how the conductive
24 A. No, Idonot. 24 coating was delivered to the Lincoln facility
25 Q. Do you know how the SpeedyDry that {25 from 1975 to 19867
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1 A. No, I do not. 1 A. Idon't have any direct knowledge

2 Q. Can you describe the physical 2 before 1992.

3 characteristics of the fillers that were used 3 Q. Do you know if the amount of

4  at the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867 4 product produced at the Lincoln facility has

5 A. 1don't have direct knowledge of 5 changed since 19757

6 the use of fillers, but clays are 6 A. No. Idon't have any knowledge.

7 typically powder or fine particles. 7 Tdon't have any baseline to compare it to.

8 Q. Would they have been any 8 Q. Do you know if more product --

9 particular color during this time period? 9 withdrawn. Do you know if more products are
10 A. Idon't have any direct knowledge. 10 produced today at the Lincoln facility as
11 The clays that are used now are typically light |11 compared to 19807
12 incolor. 12 A. No, I do not.
13 Q. Can you describe the physical 13 Q. Can you tell me about the physical
14 characteristics of calcium carbonate? 14 characteristics of the rubber polymer that was
15 A. Similar to what I just described. 15 used to make up the rubber compounds at the
16 Q. Would the magnesium also have a 16 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986?
17 similar physical description? 17 A. Tdon't have any direct knowledge
18 A. Yes. 18 ofthat.
19 Q. Do you know how big the Lincoln 19 Q. Do you have -- do you know what
20 facility is? 20 rubber polymer looks like?
21 A. Approximately three hundred fifty 21 A. Yes.
22 thousand square feet. 22 Q. Canyou tell me?
23 Q. And can you tell me, is there more 23 A. It would be -- generally it's --
24 than one building at this facility? 24 it would be in a slab or a block.
25 A. No. There's one building. 25 Q. What type of color?

51 53

1 Q. Can you tell me how many floors 1 A. Light -

2 are in this building? 2 MR. COBURN: Today or -- or based on

3 A. The majority of the building is 3 what he has seen?

4 one level, but there is a second floor in part 4 MR. DANLEY: Yes.

5 of the building that has offices, and 5 THE WITNESS: I've seen light color.

6 there's -- there's a second floor in part of 6 BY MR DANLEY:

7 the building that has the feeds and what notto | 7 Q. Could it be any types of color?

8 the Banbury mixer. 8 A. Yeah. It could be -- yes, it

9 Q. Has the Lincoln facility expanded 9 could be different types of color depending on
10 at all since 1975? 10 if - if the rubber was purchased with the
11 A. Idon't recall that it has. 11 additives already in it and it happened to have
12 Q. Currently, do you know how many 12 carbon black in it, it would be dark in color.
13 dumpsters are at the Lincoln facility? 13 Ifit was more of a natural rubber, it would be
14 A. Today? 14 light in color.
15 Q. Yes. 15 Q. Do you know how big the slabs or
16 A. Ibelieve there are one or two. 16 blocks of rubber polymer were at the Lincoln
17 Q. Do you know how big those 17 facility from 1975 to 19862
18 dumpsters are? 18 MR. COBURN: Objection.
19 A. No. 19 THE WITNESS: No. I, again, have
20 Q. Do you know how often those 20 no -- had no direct involvement with the
21 dumpsters are serviced today? 21 facilities because that was prior to the time I
22 A. No, I donot. 22 was employed with the company.
23 Q. Do you know if there have always 23 BY MR. DANLEY:
24  been one or two dumpsters at the Lincoln 24 Q. Do you know how big the slabs or
25 facility since 19757 25 blocks of rubber polymer are that are being
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dicumyl with the EPDM. I'm not sure with the
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1 used at the Lincoln facility today? 1 was being used as an additive, is that right,
2 A. Iknow that there are some that 2 or was the lead we just talked about being used
3 are around ten pounds. I don't know all of 3 as a stabilizer?
4 them. Again, I'm not a rubber chemist, and 4 A. Well, it's an additive that serves
5 that's - I have corporate responsibility for 5 the purpose of being a stabilizer.
6 insurance and everything else, and so that's 6 Q. Isee. Can you tell me the
7 not the level of detail that I get involved 7 physical characteristics of the zinc compound
8 with. 8 that was used as a stabilizer at the Lincoln
9 Q. Can you tell me the physical 9 facility from 1975 to 1986?
10 characteristics of the additives that were used 10 A. No. I have no knowledge of that.
11 for the rubber compounds at the Lincoln 11 Q. Is zinc compound being used at the
12 facility from 1975 to 19867 12 Lincoln facility today?
13 A. Again, I have no direct knowledge 13 A. Ibelieve so.
14 of -- of the physical characteristics of the 14 Q. Do you know what it looks like?
15 additives at that time. 15 A. No, I do not.
16 Q. Do you know if the additives that 16 Q. Inyour experience, do you know if
17  are being used at the Lincoln facility today 17 there is a white powder that was used at the
18 are the same additives that were used from 1975 [18 Lincoln facility which would turn black on
19 to 19867 19 contact with your skin?
20 A. Several of them are the same -- 20 A. No. I'm not aware of such a
21 Q. Which ones are those? 21 compound.
22 A. -- more than likely. Carbon 22 Q. You'e not aware of such a
23 black. Inthe products that -~ in the products 23 compound generally?
24 that contain lead that - they would -- there 24 A. Generally or specifically.
25 would be a lead bar or block, if you will. 25 Q. Or specifically as it relates to
55 57
1 Q. So the physical characteristics of 1 Lincoln?
2 the lead being used as an additive would be in 2 A. Right.
3 the form of a bar or a block? 3 Q. Allright. I'd like to talk
4 A. Yes. 4 about --
S Q. Can you tell me the physical 5 MR. COBURN: Are you moving to
6 characteristics of carbon black? 6 another facility?
7 A. Itd be a powder. Be like 7 MR. DANLEY: No, but if you want to
8 charcoal briquet if you ground it down. 8 take a break, we'll take a break.
9 Q. Can you tell me the physical 9 (Pause in proceedings.)
10 characteristics of the sulfur compound that was 10 BY MR.DANLEY:
11 wused as an additive at the Lincoln facility? 11 Q. Allright. Let's continue our
12 MR. COBURN: During that time period? |12 discussion about the Lincoln facility. Can you
13  During the -- 13 tell me how the raw materials were mixed or
14 Q. From 1975 to 1986. 14 incorporated to make the products at the
15 A. No. I don't have knowledge of 15 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867
16 what the characteristics are. 16 A. Idon't have -- don't have any
17 Q. Is a sulfur compound being used at 17 direct knowledge of how it was done during that
18 the Lincoln facility today? : 18 time period.
19 A. Idon'tknow. Iknow that we use 19 Q. Do you have knowledge about how
20 the process -- withdraw that question. Do you

N
=

21 CPE rubber if we use a sulfur compound with it

22 ornot. 22 or incorporated today to make products at the
23 Q. We just talked about the lead that 23 Lincoln facility currently?

24 was being used as a bar -- withdraw that 24 A. Yes.

25 question. We just talked about the lead that 25 Q. Do you know if there would be any

have knowledge about how raw materials are used

15 (Pages 54 to 57)

Veritext Corporate Services

800-567-8658

973-410-4040



D DO WN

NN NNN B B 2 s b o
U W= OWw®Io U b W P O

58

difference in how the raw materials were used
or incorporated to make the finished products
at Lincoln today as opposed to how they were
used to make the products at Lincoln from 1975
to 19867

MR. COBURN: T'll object. You can
answer if you can.

THE WITNESS: [ really don't have the
specific knowledge of any difference. I believe
the setup would have been similar in that you had
to get the raw material into the Banbury mixer
and, you know, make your batch of rubber.

BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. Let's focus on the process at
Lincoln today. You said that the raw material
was put into the Banbury mixer and it was used
to make rubber, correct?

A. Yes. .

Q. Can you tell me what a Banbury
mixer is?

A. It's a--it's a machine that is
used to make rubber, the compound rubber.

Q. Does it heat up the raw material

to make rubber?
A. TI'm not sure how the machine
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ensue when you put the curing agent in to
generate heat as well.

The - my focus is, as [ indicated
with my -- when I summarized my career, has
been on safety and health. And so, you know,
the detail that I paid attention to is, you
know, if something would expose somebody to
something they'd breathe in or there'd be a
problem as opposed to the intricate details of
the process.

Q. Would it be fair to say that the
dry powder and the rubber compounds is mixed
together with the oil or other liquids in the
mixer and rubber is produced as a result?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what form the rubber
takes once it leaves the mixer?

A. The -- once the rubber leaves the
Banbury mixer, it's extruded out the bottom of
the mixer. Again, the Banbury is -- the feeds
to the Banbury were on the second floor of the
plant, and the Banbury extended down, you know,
to the floor below, and rubber was extruded in
strips into wire baskets below the Banbury
mixer. The strips then were used in our -- in
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operates.
Q. Do you know how the fillers and

polymers and oils, additives, stabilizers, and
antioxidants are put into the Banbury mixer?

A. To the best of my knowledge,
the -- when they make a batch of rubber,
depending on what kind or for what product,
they have a recipe very much like you would at
home if you're -~ you know, if you're making
bread or making something. And they would
put -- they would empty the bags of filler into
a hopper that fed into the Banbury. They would
put the lead, if there is lead -- and it's not
in every product -- or the stabilizer, whatever
stabilizer they used, and the antioxidants into
the hopper in the same way. I don't recall
seeing how the blocks of polymer are put in,
but I'm sure they would also be fed into the
hopper.

I believe the oil - the oil would

be fed from a bulk tank. You know, it would be
metered into the - into the Banbury. You
asked about the temperature. I'm not sure what
the temperature of a Banbury mixer is and what
exothermic reaction might -- you know, might

—
O W X-JO N & WN

11
12
13
14
15

16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

61

our extrusion process.

Q. When you say the strips of rubber
were used in the extrusion process, what
extrusion process are you referring to?

A. Well, there's when you -- when you
have the rubber, after you've made the rubber,
that's the raw material that you use to coat
the wire, if you will, when you're making, you
know, a rubber cable or a rubber cord. There
are continual -- there are CV lines, which
stands for continuous vulcanization,
VULCANIZATION. And continuous
vulcanization is kind of a steam cure so you
would -- you would put the rubber strip -- they
have like a strip feed, and rubber would be
extruded onto the wire as the wire's pulled
past the extruder. It goes into a big tube
that's -- that's steam heated, and while it
traverses the length of the CV, the curing
process, | guess, is completed. And then at
the other end of that there is a big take-up
that is like a reel on a drive mechanism that
takes up or spools the wire that -- onto a
reel.

Q. You said that once the rubber is
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somebody that produces and specializes in that.

Q. Would there be pieces of copper
wire that would result from the process you
just described?

MR. COBURN: Objection. If you
understand, you can answer.

THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. Do you know how these pieces of
copper wire are disposed of at the Lincoln
facility today?

A. There's -- yes, I do.

Q. Can you tell me?

A. Yes. Ifthere is a bad run ~ by
a bad run [ mean if the -- you know, there's a
problem with the rubber compound or the curing
or some quality problem -- the rubber's
collected, the scrap product's collected in a
gaylord box. A gaylord box is -- how do I
describe it? It's like a box that you could
put three or four washing machines in, you
know. It's about that size. And the gaylord,
we then collect that, and when it's full they
send it out to be recycled and recleaned.

Copper's three thirty-nine a pound

62
1 extruded on the wire, it goes into a steam 1
2 heated tube -- 2
3 A. Yes. 3
4 Q. --correct? 4
5 A. Called a continuous 5
6 vulcanization -- it's part of the continuous 6
7 vulcanization process. 7
8 Q. Is there any type of waste that's 8
9 generated as a result of the use of this steam 9
10 heated tube? 10
11 A. There's not any waste per se, but 11
12 there's -- I believe there's a water trough, 12
13 you know, where the steam condenses, and so |13
14 water would be discharged to the -- to the 14
15 sewer. 15
l6 Q. Would there be any chemicals 16
17 contained in that water as a result of the 17
18 steam heating? 18
19 A. There might be some organic 19
20 compounds, just -- it's what they would refer |20
21 to in environmental lingo as contact cooling 21
22 water, if you will. It's water that comes in 22
23  contact with the product, so it's -- there's 23
24 nothing that's generated intentionally. It 24
25 would just be incidental that, you know, any -- |25
63
1 that there would be any powder or anything like 1
2 that on -- on the rubber. There wouldn't be 2
3 any powder since it was extruded, but there'd 3
4 be any compounds that -- you know, if it would 4
5 leach out or anything, it would be captured in S5
6 that. 6
7 Q. You mentioned that wire was a part 7
8 of this process, correct? 8
9 A. Yes. 9
10 Q. Do you know what types of wire? 10
11 A. Copper wire. 11
12 Q. Do you know the volume of copper 12
13 wire that is used by the Lincoln facility 13
14 today? 14
15 A. No, Idonot. 15
16 Q. Do you know if there are any other 16
17 types of wire used today at the Lincoln 17
18 facility for -- in order to make its products? 18
19 A. Again, ignition wire that'd have 19
20 the silicone product that I described. Other 20
21 than that, it would all be copper wire. 21
22 Q. Do you know where the Lincoln 22
23 facility receives this copper wire from? 23
24 A. No, I donot. It's a third party. 24
25 Idon't know if it's Al or who, but it's 25
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right now, and it's worth a lot of money. Even
when it was not as high a few years ago, it's
always been worth a lot. So every effort's

made to save all of the copper that you can
because you get money back from - from the
recycler. So it would go to maybe OmniSource.
I don't know that it would go from Lincoln to
Indianapolis, but that's what we do today. We
send it to an approved recycler and we reclaim
1t.

Q. Do you know when the Lincoln
facility began recycling the used or scrap
copper?

A. Ibelieve they always did.

Q. Why do you say that? .

A. Wire and cable is a tough low
margin business, and you need to do everything
you can to - to be frugal and to save. And
copper is -- copper's money, and there'd be
every emphasis on reducing scrap and the scrap
that you did have on reclaiming or recycling
it. You know, I know when I joined the company
in 1992, that was an emphasis at all the
facilities. And I assume it would have been
before, but I have no direct knowledge of that.
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1 Q. Would it be fair to say that the 1 liquid wastes generated at the Lincoln facility

2 Lincoln facility tried to save money where it 2 today?

3 could in its operations? 3 A. Not that I'm aware of.

4 MR. COBURN: Objection. 4 Q. Do you know what types of liquid

5 THE WITNESS: I believe that would 5 wastes were generated at the Lincoln facility

6 have been fair for all wire and cable 6 from 1975 to 19867

7 manufacturers, yes. 7 A. Thave no direct knowledge of it.

8 BY MR. DANLEY: 8 I would assume that there would be oil waste as

9 Q. Do you know if there would have 9 there is today, but, again, that was before I
10 been a tan watery type of paste that would have [10 joined the company. I would assume there would
11 been waste generated as a result of any process |11 be some ink waste.
12 undertaken at the Lincoln facility from 1975t0 |12 Q. Do you know how liquid waste was
13 19867 13 disposed of from the Lincoln facility from 1975
14 A. Tan watery paste? No, I don't 14 to 19867
15 have any knowledge of that. 15 A. No, I do not.
16 Q. Do you know if there's tan watery 16 Q. Do you know if oily rags were put
17 paste generated -- let me withdraw that 17 in barrels and disposed of from the Lincoln
18 question. Do you know if there was any tan 18 facility from 1975 to 1986?
19 watery paste generated at the Lincoln facility 19 A. 1don't have any direct knowledge
20 at any time? 20 of it one way or another.
21 A. Ihave no knowledge of that. 21 Q. Do you have any knowledge of it?
22 Q. Do you know if there were fiber 22 A. No.
23 drums containing wet rosin generated as waste |23 Q. You mentioned earlier in the
24 at the Lincoln facility at any time? 24 manufacturing process that bags were emptied in
25 A. Idon't have any direct knowledge 25 order to get the contents into a hopper that
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1 ofthat, no. 1 fed into the mixer.

2 Q. Do you have any type of knowledge 2 A. That's correct.

3 ofthat? 3 Q. Were the bags of these types of

4 A. The drums I recall at Lincoln have 4 materials emptied completely at the Lincoln

5 always been steel drums. Fiber -- you know, 5 facility from 1975 to 1986 before they were

6 some materials, I'm sure, could be purchased in 6 disposed of?

7 fiber drums, but my familiarity is with steel 7 A. 1think that an effort was made

8 drums. 8 to -- would have been made -- again, I don't

9 Q. What types of materials could have 9 have direct knowledge, but an effort would have
10 been purchased with -- in fiber drums? 10 been made to use all of the product that you
11 A. From an industrial standpoint, it 11 bought. And if, you know, a mixture called for
12 would have been a powdered material. Anything (12 fifty pounds of a product, you'd want to get --
13 that comes in powder could be -~ could be 13  and you had a fifty pound bag, you'd want to
14 purchased in bags or it could perhaps be 14 getall of it you could out.
15 purchased in a fiber drum because you don't 15 There -- I think it would be
16 have to have leakproof or anything. It could 16 impossible not to have some residual -- some
17 also be purchased in a super sack or, you know, 17 residual material. If you're slitting a bag,
18 agreat big sack. So there's lots of ways that 18 dumping it, shaking it, you -- you know, logic
19 it could be purchased. 19  would tell you that there's going to be some
20 Q. What types of liquid wastes are 20 residual material left in that bag. I think
21 generated at the Lincoln facility today? 21 that if there -- if there were pellets, and I
22 A. There's waste oil and waste ink, 22 don't know if pellets were used -- there would
23  but those would be the primary -- primary 23  be almost nothing because the pellets would
24 liquids that would be generated at Lincoln. 24 slide out.
25 Q. Are there any other types of 25 Q. Would you be able to quantify the
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1 amount of residual material left in these bags 1 A. Idon't have -- I don't have

2 after they were emptied and then disposed of at | 2 direct knowledge of that. I would -- I think

3 the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986? 3 it would vary depending on if you were making a

4 A. No. I don't have any direct 4 batch how many bags of X or Y you put in -- you

5 knowledge at that time. I will anticipate your 5 know, you put in the batch. It would not take

6 next question and - 6 long to slide a bag, you know, four feet, five

7 MR. COBURN: Well, just -- 7 feet, on a roller, conveyer, slit it, and then

8 BY MR. DANLEY: 8 shake it out.

9 Q. Can you tell me if you can answer 9 Q. Do you know how many employees at
10 that question in terms of today? 10 the Lincoln facility today are responsible for
11 A. Yes,Ican. 11 sliding bags down the belt and putting them
12 Q. Please -- please answer. 12 into the hopper?

13 A. We -- probably approximately two 13 A. No, I do not.
14 ounces of material would be left in a bag. 14 Q. Can you tell me the hours of
15 Q. What volume bag are we speaking 15 operation at the Lincoln facility today?
16 of? 16 A. It runs twenty-four hours a day,
17 A. Fifty pound bag. 17 sevendays a week. Isay that -- and I'd like
18 Q. How were the bags emptied at the 18 to clarify - to the best of my knowledge.
19 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986? 19 Business is a little bit slow right now, so if
20 A. Idon't have direct knowledge of 20 they've backed off a day or cut a shift, it
21 that. 21 would be temporary.
22 Q. Do you know how they're emptied 22 Q. Do you know if generally since
23 today at the Lincoln facility? 23 1975 the Lincoln facility has been in operation
24 A. Ibelieve that there is a slitter 24 twenty-four hours a day seven days a week?
25 that you slit the belly of the bag and shake it 25 A. No, I --no,Idonot. The wire
71 73

1 into the hopper. 1 and cable business is a very cyclical business,

2 Q. Can you describe the slitter just 2 so you -~ it goes, you know, up and down. But

3 alittle bit more, please? Is that some kind 3 Idon't have knowledge of what happened between

4 of big saw or -- 4 75 and, you know, '92.

5 A. No. 5 Q. Since 1992, has the Lincoln

6 Q. -- what is that? 6 facility generally been operating seven days a

7 A. It's just a protrusion, if you 7 week, twenty-four hours a day?

8 will, coming up with a sharp edge that you can 8 A. Most of the time. I think there

9 slide the bag over as you approach the hopper. 9 have been periods when we've worked less.

10 So if you have a conveyer - if you have a 10 There have been periods when we had a labor
11 conveyer -- not an automatic conveyer, but a 11 strike. There have been periods when we've,
12 roller conveyer, you put the bag -- you put a 12 you know, had layoffs or backed off of a shift.
13 bag from a pallet onto the roller, and you roll 13 But in general we've -- we try to operate 24/7
14 it down in front of the hopper. The hopper's 14 to utilize the capacity and the equipment that
15 sitting behind, you know - up against the 15 we have fully.

16 roller. And you push it over the - over the 16 Q. Once the bag is slit open and its

17 projection to slit it and dump it and, you 17 contents put into the hopper, what does the

18 know, shake it into the hopper. 18 employee do with the bag itself?

19 Q. Is this — 19 MR. COBURN: Today?

20 A. Does that - 20 MR. DANLEY: Today. Yes.

21 Q. -- machine operated or by hand? 21 THE WITNESS: Okay. The employee
22 A. By hand. 22 would put the bag in a compactor or the - you
23 Q. How long does that process take 23 know, the roll-off bin. I think they could

24 once you get it on the conveyer belt to slit it 24 collect the bags maybe in a -- in a gaylord or in
25 _and then put it into the mixer or hopper? 25 a-- something that can be transported to where
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1 the roll-off was, but that's what would generally 1 later. In the manufacturing process at the
2 be done with it. If there was a bag that -- 2 Lincoln facility today, are there instances in
3 mean, mostly we're talking the clays and the 3 which wire covered with rubber is defective?
4 things that are not considered hazardous, those 4 A. Yes.
5 would be disposed of in that manner. If there was 5 Q. Can you give me generally the
6 amaterial that was hazardous, it would be put in 6 amount of defective product resulting from the
7 ahazardous waste barrel and disposed of in that 7 manufacturing process at the Lincoln facility?
8 manner, you know, according to the RCRA rules, 8 A. No. Our scrap rates are low, but
9 Resource Conservation Recovery Act. 9 1don't know.
10 BY MR. DANLEY: 10 Q. When you say that the scrub
11 Q. Do you know when the Lincoln 11 rates --
12 facility started treating bags with hazardous 12 A. Scrap rates.
13 substances differently? 13 Q. Scrap rates. The scrap rates are
14 MR. COBURN: Objection. 14 low, what does that mean?
15 THE WITNESS: I have no direct 15 A. Tt means that General Cable has
16 knowledge of that or knowledge of if they had 16 had during the past few years several plants
17 hazardous substances in a bag. My focus on safety |17 that have been top ten or top twenty-five
18 and health, I'm obviously most interested in lead 18  industry manufacturing facilities, and we're
19 or lead dust, and so, you know, that was -- that 19 very focused on six sigma and lean
20  would have been my primary focus in 1992. Sol {20 manufacturing techniques to minimize any waste
21 don't know that they had bags that had hazardous 21 and to reduce any scrap. We have -- so we have
22 material in them. 22 abig emphasis on that.
23 BY MR. DANLEY: 23 Q. Do you know if these techniques
24 Q. So it would be fair to say that 24  were in place at the Lincoln facility from 1975
25 you don't know when they started treating bags 25 to 1986?
75 77
1 with hazardous material, if any, differently at 1 A. 1do not believe that six sigma
2 the Lincoln facility? 2 and lean were used at that time. 1 think
3 MR. COBURN: Objection. 3 they're more recent. I think they would have
4 THE WITNESS: Ifany did exist, it 4 tried to be efficient but those are -~ those
5 would be fair to say I don't know when they -- you 5 are processes, you know, since demoing, other
6 know, how they handled it or what they did at that 6 industry leaders implemented them a few years
7 time. I don't have any direct knowledge. 7 ago.
8 BY MR. DANLEY: 8 Q. Are you aware of any bags -- let
9 Q. When you say -~ you said earlier 9 me withdraw that question. Are you aware of
10 that there were bags of pellets used in the 10 any bags used at the Lincoln facility today
11 manufacturing process, is that correct? 11 that are marked Teknor Apex?
12 MR. COBURN: Can you clarify during 12 A. I'mnot aware, but I've seen
13 what time period? 13 Teknor Apex. You know, I've seen the name
14 MR. DANLEY: I can. 14 Teknor Apex at General Cable facilities.
15 BY MR. DANLEY: 15 Q. Where have you seen that name?
16 Q. Are bags of pellets used in the 16 A. T1think I've seen it at maybe our
17 manufacturing process at Lincoln today? 17 Franklin, Massachusetts, plant, our -- I don't
18 A. TI'm not sure. 18 recall if I've seen it at the Lincoln plant.
19 Q. Do you know if bags of pellets 19 The name's -- the name's familiar. It's
20 were used in the manufacturing process at the 20 located in Rhode Island, I believe.
21 Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867 21 Q. Do you know if bags of raw
22 A. Idon't have any direct knowledge 22 material used at the Lincoln facility from 1975
23 ofthat, so I do not know. 23 to 1986 were marked Teknor Apex?
24 Q. Are bags of pellets used at -- 24 A. Tdon't have any direct knowledge
25 Il withdraw the question. We'll come to it 25  of'that. I'm not sure where they bought their
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products.

Q. These bags of raw product that we
have been discussing today, are they any
particular type of color? The bags themselves?

A. Tdon't recall. Idon't recall
that detail. Nothing stands out to me.

Q. From 1975 to 1986 at the Lincoln
facility, would it have been possible that
rubber disposed of would have contained wire?

MR. COBURN: Objection. If you know
yOu can answer.

THE WITNESS: I don't know. I would
speculate that it would be a possibility, but I
have no direct knowledge. It may or may not have
been the case.

BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. Do you know from 1975 to 1986 at
the Lincoln facility if it would have been
possible that floor sweepings disposed of --
would have contained pieces of wire?

MR. COBURN: Objection. You can
answer.

THE WITNESS: Again, I believe it
would have been possible, but every effort was
made to collect any copper, whether it was in a

YO 0w
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Q. What types of efforts would have
been undertaken to collect copper from floor
sweepings at the Lincoln facility from 1975 to
1986?

A. Again, I have no direct knowledge.
Based on -- based on how it's done now, I would
think that anything large enough to recycle or
pick up would have been put in. I don't think
there would be much effort to, you know -- it
would be -- it would not be a good use of time
if there was a tiny piece of copper to try to
pick it out of -- out of a floor sweeping so --

Q. Today is there somebody at the
Lincoln facility that's responsible for looking
at the floor sweepings to pick out pieces of
wire?

A. Each operator keeps their area
clean. Operators are supervised, and
operators' work areas are monitored. I think
if you were to see the Lincoln facility, you
would be pleasantly surprised at how clean the
facility is.

Q. Do you know if those were the
types of procedures that were in place at the
Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867
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1 piece of rubber scrap or it was from a piece of 1 A. Idon't have any knowledge of the

2 wire that was cut so it could be recycled. There 2 procedures during that time period.

3 could have been copper fines or small strands in 3 Q. What types of procedures are

4 floor sweepings that would have been disposed of. 4 instituted at the Lincoln facility today in

5 It would have been possible. 5 order to reclaim copper wire from rubber?

6 BY MR. DANLEY: 6 A. We collect any scrap that has

7 Q. Do you know how these floor 7 copper in it, and it would be sent to —- it

8 sweepings or pieces of rubber containing wire 8 would be picked up by our recycler and

9 would have been disposed of? 9 shipped -- you know, be shipped out, picked up
10 A. Ihave no direct knowledge. I 10 by our recycler. So it would be segregated
11 would assume that copper fines, rubber 11 until there was a sufficient quantity, and I'm
12 containing wire, would be recycled and floor 12 not sure what that quantity is, and then the
13 sweepings would typically be put in -- in a box 13 recycler would come and take it.
14 or in something that was put in the dumpster. 14 Q. What types of procedures were in
15 Q. Would it have been possible from 15 place at the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986
16 1975 to 1986 at the Lincoln facility that 16 in order to reclaim wire from rubber?
17  rubber containing wire was disposed of in the 17 A. 1don't have any knowledge of what
18  dumpster? 18 procedures would have been in place then.
19 A. Again, I have no direct knowledge 19 Q. Was there any type of plastic used
20 ofit. If somebody didn't follow procedure, it 20 or -- let me withdraw that question. Was there
21 could have been possible, I would imagine. 21 any types of plastics used for the
22 But, again, I believe as an industry and -- 22 manufacturing process at the Lincoln facility
23 there would have been every effort to minimize 23 from 1975 to 19867
24 any copper going into the dumpster because it's 24 A. T'm not aware of any.
25 money. 25 Q. Was there any plastic generated as

81
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disposed of at the Lincoln facility from 1975
to 19867
A. Thave --

MR. COBURN: Objection. Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: I have no direct
knowledge of how it was disposed of, but as an
industry, every effort was made to reclaim copper
because it was worth money, so I would assume they
would have some procedures in place, but [ have no
direct knowledge one way or another of that.

BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. Do you -- would you know when
these procedures would have been instituted at
the Lincoln facility?

MR. COBURN: Can you clarify these
procedures?

MR. DANLEY: The procedures the
witness just discussed.

THE WITNESS: Again, [ have no direct
knowledge, but I would assume that procedures to
recover any scrap copper would have been in place
from the onset because it's money, and every
effort would have been made to recover any waste
and offset any scrap loss by reclaiming the
copper.

85

BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. Do you know how rubber was
disposed of at the Lincoln facility from 1975
to 19867

MR. COBURN: Objection.

THE WITNESS: Again, I have no
knowledge of that.
BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. How is rubber disposed of at the
Lincoln facility today?

A. lamnot -- I am not sure. I
don't -- T'm not involved in that detail. They
would attempt to send it to a recycler where --
I know some of it at one time had been ground
up to put on horsing field tracks, that type of
thing. If there was a rubber product that was
not recyclable or there was no market for that,
we would send it to a landfill, provided that,
you know, it was not a hazardous waste, it did
not fail a TCLP test.

Q. Do you know when the Lincoln
facility began analyzing the rubber that it was
going to dispose of for the TCLP materials?

A. Idon't know -~ I don't know when
that started. I know that RCRA, Resource

82
1 aresult of the process at the Lincoln facility 1
2 from 1975 to 19867 2
3 A. 1, again, have no knowledge. To 3
4 the extent a pallet of material may have been 4
5 shrink wrapped with a plastic -- that may have 5
6 been disposed of. I don't know when they 6
7 started using shrink wrap. 7
8 Q. Do you know if jumper cables were 8
9 disposed of at the Lincoln facility from 1975 9
10 to 1986? 10
11 A. Thave no knowledge. 11
12 Q. Do you know what the Lincoln 12
13 facility would have done with defective jumper 13
14 cables generated from 1975 to 19867 14
15 MR. COBURN: Objection. 15
16 THE WITNESS: Let me -- 16
17 MR. COBURN: If you understand, you |17
18 can answer. Go ahead. 18
19 THE WITNESS: Yes. I guess I 19
20 should -- I can clarify something for you. The 20
21 Lincoln facility made the -- made the jumper 21
22 cable -- the jumper cable cable, if you will. If 22
23 that cable was sent to, you know, other assembly {23
24  plants to make the booster -~ the booster cables 24
25 orjumper cables, so in general -- [ mean, Lincoln |25
83
1 would have never disposed of any booster cables or | 1
2 it would have been unlikely. Again, I don't have 2
3 direct familiarity with the process, but they were 3
4 not an assembly plant. They were a plant that 4
5 made the cord and shipped it to other General 5
6 Cable plants or Carol Cable plants at the time 6
7 that would have done the assembly and put the 7
8 clamps on. 8
9 So if there would have been defective 9
10 booster cable wire or cable, that would have been 10
11 handled in the manner I described as, you know, 11
12 where it would have been segregated and recycled. 12
13 If-- but there wouldn't have been, you know, the 13
14 assembly of booster cables there. That's my best 14
15 understanding. 15
16 BY MR.DANLEY: 16
17 Q. Do you know when this cord — I'll 17
18  withdraw that question. Do you know when these {18
19 defective cords began to be reclaimed in the 19
20 manner you described at the Lincoln facility? 20
21 MR. COBURN: Objection. Can you 21
22 clarify defective? 22
23 BY MR. DANLEY: 23
24 Q. Do you know if -- I'll withdraw 24
25 the question. Do you know how cord was 25
22 (Pages 82 to 85)

Veritext Corporate Services

800-567-8658

973-410-4040



86 88
1 Conservation Recovery Act, that required 1 MR. COBURN: Objection.
2 manifesting and required a lot of these 2 THE WITNESS: Again, I have no direct
3 procedures, didn't really come into effect 3 knowledge. I would assume that oil can -- 0il can
4 until November of 1980. I don't recall when -- 4 berecycled, and it may have a commercial value,
5  you know, when the TCLP test became available 5 so there would be a reason to dispose of it, you
6 or became required, if it was in 1980, November 6 know, regardless of RCRA regulations to try to get
7 of '80 or later. So Ireally can't give youa 7 it reclaimed or somebody would take it off your
8 date of the onset, but since I've been with the 8 hands. If they would take it off your hands for
9 company, we've made every effort to, you know, 9 free as opposed to spending money to landfill it
10 analyze the waste and, if it's hazardous, 10 or to do something else with it, that would be a
11 dispose of it as a hazardous waste; and, if 11 good -~ good business decision. Also, oil is very
12 not, either recycle it or, if there's no 12 heavy, and, you know, to the extent that you had
13 alternative, landfill it. 13 to pay by weight to dispose, it would cost you
14 Q. Do you know when the Lincoln 14 more to do that than to recycle it. Copper, we've
15 facility instituted procedures to comply with 15 discussed, that it has a reclaim value. As far as
16 RCRA? 16 other products, I don't have an answer, you know,
17 A. No, I do not. 17 one way or another on that.
18 Q. Do you know if the Lincoln 18 BY MR. DANLEY:
19 facility had any procedures in place dealing 19 Q. So other than oil and copper, you
20 with substances prior to RCRA? 20 cannot give me a reason as to why the Lincoln
21 A. Idon't have any direct knowledge 21 facility would have treated other substances
22  of that. 22 differently prior to RCRA?
23 Q. Do you know if, generally, it 23 MR. COBURN: Objection.
24 costs more money to comply with regulations? 24 THE WITNESS: I have no knowledge and
25 MR. COBURN: Objection. Can you 25 TIreally can't speculate as to, you know --
87 89
1 clarify —~ that's an extremely broad question. 1 speculate on that.
2 Can you try to narrow that down? 2 BY MR.DANLEY:
3 MR. DANLEY: Yes. 3 Q. Would it cost more money for the
4 BYMR.DANLEY: 4 Lincoln facility to treat substances other than
5 Q. Inthe environmental health and 5 oil or copper differently in terms of disposal
6 safety field, does it cost more money to comply 6 prior to RCRA?
7 with those types of provisions as opposed to 7 A. Tm--
8 not having to institute procedures? 8 MR. COBURN: Objection.
9 MR. COBURN: Same objection. 9 THE WITNESS: Excuse me.
10 THE WITNESS: I guess [ would answer |10 MR. COBURN: If you know, you can
11 that that it depends on your time horizon. It 11 answer.
12 would cost more to dispose of a chemical in a 12 THE WITNESS: 1 don't know if prior
13 licensed hazardous waste landfill than it would be |13 to RCRA there were approved, you know, landfills
14 to dump it on the side of the road or send it to 14 or what the cost would have been to dispose of it
15 an unapproved facility in the short term. In the 15 inlocation A or landfill A versus B. Idon't
16 long term, it would end up costing you more 16 know if there were those facilities then. I just
17 because you'd get into a potential super fund or 17 don't have the historical, you know, knowledge of
18 third party liability situation so -- 18 that.
19 BY MR. DANLEY: 19 BY MR. DANLEY:
20 Q. What reason -- 20 Q. Assuming there were no other
21 A. --itcuts both ways. 21 regulations prior to RCRA, other than oil and
22 Q. What reason would there be for the 22 copper, what other reasons - what reasons
23 Lincoln facility to treat substances 23 would there be for the Lincoln facility to
24 differently based on their chemical composition 24 treat substances differently in terms of
25 prior to RCRA? 25 disposal?
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1 MR. COBURN: Objection. 1 Q. What reason would there be to

2 THE WITNESS: I don't have any 2 dispose of rubber just coming from the Banbury

3 knowledge of that. I don't know of a reason. 3 mixer?

4 BY MR.DANLEY: 4 A. The reason would be that if it was

5 Q. Would it be less costly for the 5 determined that the batch was bad and, you

6 Lincoln facility to dispose of waste other than 6 know, was not suitable to, you know, strip feed

7 copper and oil in the same manner as opposed to 7 and use in the other process I've described,

8 treating waste differently based on its 8 then the rubber would -- would not have value

9 chemical composition? 9 unless it could be, you know, reused or refed
10 MR. COBURN: Objection. 10 back in the process. I know that's done now a
11 THE WITNESS: Again, I have -- I have 11 lot, and I assume it would have been done then,
12 no direct knowledge or don't know what -- what the |12 but I have no direct knowledge of that, that to
13 economic difference was at that time or the 13 the extent you can reuse it -- again, that's
14 alternatives. I really can't answer that because 14 a--that's a question for a rubber chemist
15 Thave no idea. 15 because it would probably depend on what the
16 BY MR.DANLEY: 16 issue was and, you know, if it had already
17 Q. Generally, in your experience, is 17 cured or not or, you know, what had happened to
18 it easier to dispose of waste in the same 18 the rubber, why it was bad as to whether you
19 manner as opposed to disposing of waste in 19 could remill it or not.
20 different manners? 20 Q. Do you know the frequency today in
21 MR. COBURN: Can you clarify what you {21 which rubber coming from the mixer is deemed
22 mean by easier? 22  bad?
23 MR. DANLEY: Yes. 23 A. No, I do not.
24 BY MR.DANLEY: 24 Q. Isitonce a day?
25 Q. Is it more convenient? 25 A. Oh, no.
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1 MR. COBURN: Objection. 1 Q. Once a week?

2 THE WITNESS: Yes. 2 A. Iwould be - I would be very

3 BYMR.DANLEY: 3 surprised if it was once a week. The quality

4 Q. Generally, in your experience, is 4 is very high there and the scrap rates are

5 it less expensive to dispose of waste in the 5 extremely low.

6 same manner as opposed to disposing of waste in 6 Q. Do you know if there's any dust

7 different manners? 7 that is generated as a result in the

8 MR. COBURN: Objection. 8 manufacturing process at Lincoln today?

9 THE WITNESS: Yes. There's less 9 A. Yes. There's dust generated when
10 labor involved in not segregating. 10 the bags are -- the bags of clays and fillers
11 BY MR.DANLEY: 11 are slit and dumped into the hopper. There
12 Q. Do you know in -- withdraw that 12 would be some residual dust that isn't captured
13 question. Do you know from 1975to 1986 ifthe |13 by the ventilation and would be -- would be
14 Lincoln facility would have disposed of hot 14 generated. There's - the rest of the process
15 rubber? 15 would generate very little dust. I mean, if
16 A. Hot rubber. I--do you mean hot 16 you--if'you, you know, slit a cardboard box
17 temperature-wise rubber? 17 to open it, some dust would be generated no
18 Q. Yes. Yes. 18 matter what it had in it just as, you know, if
19 A. Idon't have any -~ | don't have 19 youdid it at home or you opened a carton of
20 any direct knowledge of that, but if rubber 20 something or office paper. There's carpeting
21 came out of the Banbury warm, I don't know how |21 in the office that would generate the dust like
22 long it would stay hot to -- if it was disposed 22 household-type dust, but very little dust would
23 ofin a~ in a roll-off bin or something. You 23  be generated at Lincoln.
24 know, I don't know how long it would take to 24 Q. The powders that we've discussed
25 lose its heat. 25 that were used in the manufacturing process at
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1 Lincoln, do you know if these powders today are | 1 product may be a mining cable. You know, there
2 different colors such as blue, orange, gray? 2 may be a cable that's used as a mining cable
3 A. No, Ido not. 3 that, you know, directly goes to an industrial
4 Q. Would you be aware of whether 4 customer or goes to -~ goes to Granger or
5 powders used at the Lincoln facility from 1975 5 somebody like that. But the ignition wire
6 to 1986 were either blue, orange, or gray? 6 would, you know, go to Altoona. We no longer
7 A. No, I have no direct knowledge of 7 make booster cables, so -
8 that. 8 Q. Let's assume that an extension
9 Q. Inyour experience, have you come 9  cord - an orange extension cord is being
10  across powders that were used in the 10 manufactured.
11 manufacturing process that were blue or orange? {11 A. Okay.
12 A. Yes. 12 Q. Would the extension cord, once it
13 Q. What types of powders would those 13 leaves the Lincoln facility, be orange?
14 be? 14 A. If Lincoln manufactured during
15 A. Ifyou have plastic compounds -- 15 that period or whenever an extension cord that
16 not rubber but plastic compounds -- there are 16 was orange, what they would do is they just
17 colorants sometimes added or if you buy - if 17 would have manufactured the orange cable, and
18 you buy instead of, you know, compound, a 18 it would have been orange. They would have
19 plastic material, it's usually in pellets. And 19 sent it to Montoursville, Altoona,
20 if you're going to extrude -- and this is in 20 Pennsylvania, a plant like that where they
21 wire and cable. If you're going to have a blue 21 would have molded on the ends of the extension
22 extension cord or a blue cord, you would get it 22 cord.
23  from the manufacturer and it would be -- the 23 Q. So the coloring of the cord would
24  pellets would be blue. The colorant would 24 have been determined at the Lincoln facility,
25 already be in there. 25 correct?
95 97
1 Q. Do you know if colorants were used 1 MR. COBURN: Objection. Again,
2 at the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986? . 2 assuming -- assuming that there was orange cord
3 A. Thave no direct knowledge of 3 manufactured at Lincoln.
4 that. Idon't know. 4 BY MR.DANLEY:
5 Q. Do you know if colorants are used 5 Q. Assuming that there was colored
6 at the Lincoln facility today? 6 cord in this process, it would have been
7 A. Idon't know. 7 determined at the Lincoln facility, correct?
8 Q. Do you know how the -- I'll 8 A. Yes. Lincoln would have, again,
9 withdraw that question. Are the different 9 manufactured the cord, and if - if it was
10 types of cords produced at the Lincoln facility {10 used -- and I have no direct knowledge of
11 different colors today? 11 that -- it would have been that color, whatever
12 A. 1--the ones I'm familiar with 12 color, green, orange, whatever color, that's
13 are black, but I - I don't know if they do -- 13 what we would have sent to the other
14 again, in my current role in global insurance 14 facilities.
15 and energy and M&A and other things, I deal 15 Q. Do you have any knowledge of a
16 with the macro issues with safety and health, 16 special load of waste disposed of on a monthly
17 you know, like the European Reach regulations |17 basis from the Lincoln facility from 1975 to
18 and things like that as opposed to, you know, 18 19867
19 the day-to-day plant-type things. So I'm not 19 A. No.
20 trying to not answer your question. I just 20 Q. Do you know if there were times
21 don't have that direct knowledge. 21 from 1975 to 1986 in which the Lincoln facility
22 Q. When cord is produced at the 22 used an extra dumpster in which to dispose of
23 Lincoln facility today, it's sent elsewhere for 23 its waste?
24 the finished product, right? 24 A. Thave no knowledge of that.
25 A. Yes. Well, it -- a finished 25 Q. Do you know if such practice is
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Q. Can you tell me why nobody seems

98
1 occurring today at the Lincoln facility? 1 to know what type of maintenance was performed
2 A. Idon't believe they are. I don't 2 at the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 1986?
3 have knowledge of it. 3 MR. COBURN: Objection.
4 Q. Do you know who serviced the 4 THE WITNESS: I can't. I don't have
5 dumpsters at the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 5  any direct familiarity with the process.
6 19867 6 BY MR. DANLEY:
7 A. No, I do not. 7 Q. Inyour experience, is the
8 Q. Do you know where the contents 8 cleaning of the type of equipment at the
9 from the dumpsters would have been taken from 9 Lincoln facility a process which undergoes
10 the Lincoln facility from 1975 to 19867 10 changes over time?
11 A. Thave no direct knowledge of 11 MR. COBURN: Objection.
12 that, no. 12 THE WITNESS: I don't understand the
13 Q. Do you have any knowledge of that? 13 question.
14 A. No. Other than the knowledge -- 14 BY MR. DANLEY:
15 other than what we disclosed in the -- you 15 Q. Me neither. In your experience --
16 know, the information in the 104(e). That's -- 16 let me ask you this: Do you know if there were
17 Q. And are you referring to any 17 any changes in how equipment was cleaned at the
18 particular part of the 104(e)? 18 Lincoln facility from 1975 to today?
19 A. No. 19 A. Idon't have any knowledge of --
20 Q. So you have no reason to 20 don't have any knowledge of that. We use a
21 dispute -- I'll withdraw the question. Can 21 process called 5S.
22 you -- for Exhibit 3 can you turn to page 189? 22 Q. 58--
23 A. Yes. 23 A. Today.
24 Q. Okay. And if we look back at 24 Q. --asinsalary?
25 Exhibit 2 on page 334 -- actually, let's -- 25 A. Yes. 5Sisjust-—-it'sa
99 101
1 let's turn the page to 335. 1 Japanese terms, but it's essentially put
2 A. Okay. 2 everything in its place. So we've got our --
3 Q. And if you see at the top it says 3 all the tools for the -- each machine on a peg
4  describe the cleaning and maintenance of 4  board with the outline of the tool. That's
5 equipment and machinery involved in these S something newer today. It doesn't really
6 operations - 6 involve cleaning, but everything is right —
7 A. Mm-hmm. 7 you know, everything you have is right there so
8 Q. --and if we go back to Exhibit 3 8 the operator can maintain the equipment and
9 on page one eighty-nine, the response for the 9 take care of it in an efficient manner.
10 Lincoln facility is not known. Do you see 10 Q. Do you know how the equipment at
11 that? 11 the Lincoln facility is cleaned today?
12 A. Okay. 12 A. No.
13 Q. Do you see that? 13 Q. Do you know how the equipment at
14 A. Yes. 14 the Lincoln facility is maintained today?
15 Q. Can you tell me why no one knew 15 A. Idon't know the specifics. I
16 what the cleaning and -- I'll withdraw the 16 know that they have a preventative maintenance
17 question. Can you tell me why nobody knew what |17 program where, you know, if they have to change
18 the cleaning process was at the Lincoln 18 out apart or if they have -- you know, if it's
19 facility? 19 abearing or if it's changing the oil in a
20 MR. COBURN: Objection. 20 piece of equipment or calibrating or doing
21 THE WITNESS: Idon't know. It was 21 anything, they have -- they have a process
22 well before the time I joined the company, and I 22  where they try to do predictive maintenance
23  don't know why we wouldn't have had information. {23 and -- and address those things before you have
24 BY MR. DANLEY: 24 abreakdown to minimize any down time.
25 Q. Do you know if there's been any
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1 changes in the maintenance process at the 1 corporate -- I mean when it was a Carol Cable

2 Lincoln facility from 1975 until today? 2 headquarters.

3 A. Tdon't have any knowledge of the 3 Q. Was there more than one floor to

4 process prior to 1992, so I don't know. The 4  this facility?

5 process that I described, predictive 5 A. Yes.

6 maintenance, has been more recently employed at | 6 Q. Let me withdraw that question.

7 industry as a whole. 7 Was there more than the first floor and the

8 MR. DANLEY: Can we go off the 8 basement to this facility?

9 record? 9 A. Idon'trecall
10 (Pause in proceedings.) 10 MR. RISINGER: I'm sorry. What's the
11 BY MR.DANLEY: 11 time period you're in? I lost my train of
12 Q. Canyou tell me if -- let me 12 thought. Were you in --
13 withdraw that question. Do you know the dates 13 MR. DANLEY: In any time period when
14 of operation of the Pawtucket facility? 14 it was in operation that the witness knows.
15 A. No, Idonot. Idoknow that it 15 MR. RISINGER: Thank you. Sorry.
16 closed, I believe, in 1996, but I don't know 16 THE WITNESS: Idon't recall. I
17 when it began operation. 17 recall when -- it appeared to be one story from
18 Q. Do you know what types of 18 Roosevelt Avenue when you went into the front of
19 operations were performed at the Pawtucket 19 the building, and the building was up against the
20 facility? 20 Blackstone, I think it is, River, and so there was
21 A. Pawtucket. During what time 21 adrop-off from Roosevelt Avenue down. So it --1
22 period or -- 22 know that - I guess they called it the basement,
23 Q. During any time period. 23 but it would have been like a walk-out basement
24 A. Any time period? Okay. I joined 24 that -- where the production was, and then the
25 the company in 1992. 1know that Pawtucket, 25 first floor, there were offices. So that's all

103 105

1 immediately prior to 1992, I think it was 1 thatIrecall. Again, when I visited the plant, I

2 acquired by Penn Central in 1990, Carol Cable 2 was focused on safety and health, so I was more

3 was -- at that time Pawtucket was the 3 interested in the operation.

4 headquarters for Carol Cable. That's my 4 BY MR.DANLEY:

5 understanding. And so they had administrative 5 Q. Would it be fair to say that the

6 offices and purchasing offices and everything 6 first floor of the Pawtucket facility was

7  in the Pawtucket plant. 7 basically offices?

8 In the basement of the facility 8 A. That's my recollection, but --

9 they -- they had some bare wire production. 9 MR. COBURN: Let me just clarify. By
10 They drew through drawing machines copperrod |10 first floor you mean, I guess, in this case the
11 into -- into wire that was fed to the other 11 floor above the basement?
12 facilities. I believe that they also had at 12 MR. DANLEY: Yes. Yes.
13 some point some extrusion -- plastic extrusion 13 MR. COBURN: Just wanted to make sure
14 to feed some of the assembly plants. 14 we're clear.
15 Q. Can you tell me how big the 15 MR. DANLEY: You're zealously
16 Pawtucket facility was? 16 protecting the interest of your client.
17 A. T don't recall the square feet. 17 MR. COBURN: I just want to make sure
18 It wasn't as big as Lincoln, but 1 don't 18 Tunderstand.
19 recall. 19 (Thereupon, an off-the-record
20 Q. Do you know how many people worked |20 discussion was had.)
21 at the Pawtucket facility before it closed down 21 THE WITNESS: I'm doing my best I can
22 in 1996? 22 to answer your question. When General Cable
23 A. [think we only had eighty or so 23 bought -- or when General Cable was spun off from
24 in 1995 or'4. I don't remember prior to that. 24 Penn Central at the end of '92 and [ joined the
25 They would have had more when it was a 25  company, my involvement -- Carol Cable, again, was
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facility, how many employees were engaged in
the manufacturing process in the basement?

A. Geez, it's been fifteen years ago.

I think maybe fifty or sixty.

Q. Do youknow if there was any
differences in the manufacturing process at the
Pawtucket facility from 1993 to 1996 as
compared to before 1992 or 19937

A. Idon't have any knowledge of
that. I'm not sure.

Q. You mentioned previously that the
employees in the basement were involved with
bare wire production, drawing copper rods
through wire, and extruding plastic onto the
copper, is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Was there -- were there any other
activities that these employees were engaged in
at that time frame?

A. That's my knowledge that those
were the two primary activities. There would
have been a maintenance department and a
receiving department to receive raw materials
and, you know, a plant manager and, you know,
the typical staffing, a facility manager,
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no longer the headquarters, and General Cable was 1
the headquarters in Highland Height, Kentucky, and | 2
so, you know, that stuff was shut down and 3
production was going on in the basement. So when 4
I visited the -- when I visited the facility, the 5
production that I recall was in the basement. I 6
don't recall if there were other areas on that 7
ground floor where there was production in the -- 8
you know, assembly work, production, or something 9
else in the past. So I can -- I just remember it 10
from, you know, '93, '94, right before we closed 11
it. 12
BY MR. DANLEY: 13
Q. Other than the basement area, were 14
there any other parts of the Pawtucket facility 15
that were involved in the manufacturing 16
process? 17
A. Ijust don't recall. 18

Q. And for the purposes of this 19
deposition, you do not have knowledge about the 20
Pawtucket facility before what time frame? 21
A. Ijoined November 2nd, 1992, and 22

the first time I visited Pawtucket was in 1993. 23
At that time they had, you know, dissolved 24
the -- it was no longer the headquarters for 25

107

Carol. And I recall it being rather noisy and 1
production happening in the basement, if you 2
will. I don't have, you know, any other 3
knowledge of the facility before that other 4
than what's in, you know -- listed on GC020189 5
with a brief description when I reviewed the 6
104(e) notes. 7
Q. Other than what's in the 104(e) 8
notes and your personal experience beginning in 9
1992 or 1993, do you have any knowledge about 10
the operations at the Pawtucket facility before 11
1993? 12
MR. COBURN: TI'll just object to the 13

extent -- to the extent that his question would 14
require you to disclose any information that was 15
provided to you through communications with 16
counsel or other protected communications, 1 would {17
instruct you not to answer. If it's any other 18
methods upon which you gained such information, 19
then go ahead -- you can go ahead and answer. 20
THE WITNESS: No, outside of that, I 21

have no other information or knowledge of what 22
went on in that facility prior to that time. 23
BY MR. DANLEY: 24
Q. When you visited the Pawtucket 25

109

finance manager, those type of activities.

Q. And you referred to the two main
activities, and [ have in my notes three
activities, but I'm sure that I've just divided
one activity into two. Can you tell me again
what the two main activities were at the
Pawtucket facility from 1992 or '93 to 19967

A. Yeah. Ibelieve there were
several drawing machines, D R A W I N G, where
they drew down copper rod into wire. That
process involves taking copper rod -- and
copper rod is -- copper rod is copper maybe the
thickness of your index finger, just for a
general description. And you pull that through
a series of dies to get it to the gauge you
want. So depending on whether you want
twenty-four gauge or sixteen gauge or whatever
gauge wire that you need, you, you know, use
those kind of dies and do that. So it may be
run through a couple times or through different
sized dies to get it to the diameter you want
because, as you might imagine, different
products -- a mining cable's going to have a
bigger copper cord than an extension cord.

Q. When you say you run it through a
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couple of dies, I'm thinking of color-type
dyes. But am I wrong there?

A. Yes. Yes.

Q. Okay. Can you tell me what that
means and how you used it there?

A. Yeah. I guessI would think of a
die, like if you were to ~- if you recall maybe
as a young -- young child where you had
Play-Doh and you cranked it out through an
opening, and that opening would be a die. It's
more sophisticated than that, but you -- you're
pulling it through. You're pulling something
larger through a smaller opening.

Q. The other main activity, in
addition to the drawing machines, what was that
at the Pawtucket facility?

A. Ibelieve that they did also
produce some plastic cord and they extruded PVC
pellets in an extrusion machine onto the --
onto the wire to make extension cords --
extension cord cable that would have been used
at other Carol locations.

Q. Do you know if there were any
types of oils or lubricants that were needed to
operate the machinery at the Pawtucket
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years or what, but there was a significant

amount of oil between the retaining wall and

the river and the back courtyard that we had to
remediate. So that's the spill that I have

direct knowledge of, and I worked on that
remediation project when we decommissioned the
plant.

I know when we decommissioned the
plant, there was, you know, some -- some of the
older machines had leaked oil around the gear
box oil or what not around the base of the
machine, and I believe they used SpeedyDry or
something like that to clean up those spills.

Q. If SpeedyDry was used at the
Pawtucket facility to clean up oil spills prior
to 1992, do you know how the SpeedyDry would
have been disposed of?

MR. COBURN: Objection.

THE WITNESS: No. I don't have any
direct knowledge of that.

BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. Are -- were the raw materials used
at the Pawtucket facility from 1992 to 1996
similar to the raw materials we discussed
regarding the Lincoln facility?
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facility?

A. Yes, there were.

Q. Can you tell me if there were any
spills of oils or lubricants at the Pawtucket
facility from 1992 or '3 to 1996?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell me how these spills
were cleaned up at the Pawtucket facility from
1992 to 19967

A. Yes.

Q. How?

A. Got a couple categories, okay?

There was a significant -~ when we closed the
facility and decommissioned it, we found that
one of the tanks of fuel oil that had been
feeding a boiler, that heats the building, had
aleak. And we had to do a remediation where
we dug up a lot of oil-contaminated soil that
was up against the Blackstone River because we
didn't want oil to get in the river, and it was

a requirement that you had to, you know -- you
had to do that. So that would have been a
spill, but it would have been an underground
storage tank leak. We don't know if it
occurred over a period of fifteen years or two
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A. No. They would be different.

Q. Allright. Can you tell me the
types of raw materials used at the Pawtucket
facility from 1992 to 1996?

A. Yes. Pawtucket, first of all,
they would have had copper rod. And copper
rod, again, as I described it, it comes on -- I
don't know if it -- I don't recall if this is
how it came in '92 or not, but a lot of times
it comes around something called a stem pack
where it's coiled around. And, again, it's the
size of your index finger. That would have
been the raw material that we would have used
to draw down the copper.

The -- the other material we would
have gotten -- we would have had plastic or PVC
resin at the plant at that time. I believe it
would have been -- it would have been supplied
by our Taunton plant. To the extent that
there -- to the extent that it was not supplied
by the Taunton plant, if it was a specialty
product or what not, perhaps we would have
gotten it from a -- I believe like a Teknor
Apex or a company that dealt in that type of
product. Ido not recall if they added any
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colorant to the PVC or if the PVC came the
color that they wanted it. Tjust don't -
don't have a recollection or direct knowledge
of that. So there'd be fewer raw materials.
They would have ink because they
would have to meet the same requirements that
all wire and cable plants did where they, you
know, put identifiers on the -- on the cable at
certain intervals to comply with Underwriters
Lab, UL, requirements. They -- let me think
what other raw materials. I mean, they would
have had the typical paint -- cans of paint
that you have to maintain an industrial
facility, whether it's to mark the floor, paint
the walls. And they had a bigger office area
so I'm sure they would have had some, oh, you
know, Windex and cleaners to clean the office.
They would have used drawing oil.
That would have been -- I don't recall back
then the nature of it. It's -- we use
synthetic oils, and they're typically
synthetic, a paraffinic or an olefinic oil, but
I've also seen vegetable-type oil used in a
draw solution. That process I described where
you pull wire, wire has a tensile strength so
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you may add a little more solvent or something
to the ink. That would be the use of the
solvent.

They would use as raw materials,
in '92 to '96, they would have had a small
maintenance shop where they would have had a
small degreasing stand similar to what you see
in a gas station or what not where you put the
parts in and have a varsol or a stoddard
solvent or mineral spirits or something like
that in there. Those would be the primary -
you know, primary products.

I think, like Lincoln, they would
have had -- they would have done a little bit
of tack stick welding or a little tack welding
if that was necessary. They would have had
some soap solution. They would have had
SpeedyDry. Isay SpeedyDry generically,
whether it's a clay or some other absorbent.
They -- in 1992 or '3 or '4, 1 think a company
called New Pig came into existence, just PTG,
and they had -- that was their marketing play
with the pigs, like the socks that you put
around, you know, if there's any leaks or if
you want to be sure something's contained, so |
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it does stretch. You pull rod through the
dies. You do need a lubricant, and that's what
the drawing solution oil was, and it also
helped dissipate heat during that product --
during that process because there's a lot of
friction. That -- that's in a closed loop
system, but they would have purchased that as a
raw material.

They would have purchased number
four or six fuel oil to feed the boiler.
Again, I don't know how much oil they -- that
they purchased, but they would have had to do
that on a regular basis. Any plant that has a
boiler and mostly New England plants or the age
where they did would have to get fuel oil to
feed the boiler. Did I already say ink? Yes,
I believe I did.

But you would have the inks, and
you would -- most of the inks that I've been
familiar with since we used it are the solvent
carrier of the ink, it's methyl ethyl ketone,
and there is typically -- with my familiarity,
you buy one-gallon cans of methyl ethyl ketone.
And so if the ink, you know, starts to
evaporate or the solvent starts to evaporate,
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think they had some of those. But that's
pretty much my recollection of what was there.

Q. Could you give me the hours of
operation at the Pawtucket facility from 1992
to 1996 for the basement area?

A. Yeah. I--1really don't recall.

We closed it at the end -- it was either '95 or

'6. I think it was in '96, but we were winding

it down in '94 and '5 so I don't -- or at least

'95. So I don't recall whether they were still

on three shifts. I know they weren't the whole
time as we were winding it down, but they may
have been on three shifts initially. I just

don't have direct recollection.

Q. Do you know the amount of drawing
oil that would have been used at the Pawtucket
facility on a monthly basis from 1992 to 1996?

A. No. I don't have knowledge of how
much -- how much they would have had to buy.

Q. Can you use your experience in
order to make a judgment on how much drawing
oil they would have had to use at the Pawtucket
facility on a monthly basis from 1992 to 1996?

A. TIreally -- I really don't know.

T know that it's -- [ described it as a closed
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loop system where it's recirculated to a pit, a
below level pit, whether it's lined or not.

It's -- it's like -- like an underground tank

or a -- you know, a ten-by-ten pit or what not.
And that pit is -- they change the oil out once
a year, once every ten months, once a year. [
don't know what -- I'll call them fugitive
omissions, if you will, what -- what's missed
or what not is generated during the drawing
process that would require them to add during
the interim.

Q. Do you know the amount of oil that
was a result of the changing of the oil once a
year?

MR. COBURN: Objection.

THE WITNESS: No, I don't have direct
knowledge of that or knowledge of that.
BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. Do you know how the oil that was
generated as a result of this closed loop
process, how that was disposed of from the
Pawtucket facility from 1992 to 1996?

MR. COBURN: Objection.
THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. DANLEY:
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before 19922

A. No. Ihave no knowledge of that.

Q. Do you know how the copper mud was
disposed of from the Pawtucket facility before
19927

A. Again, I have no knowledge of
that. I would assume because of the value of
copper they would have sent it to a reclaimer,
but I have no direct knowledge.

Q. Can you give me the annual amount
of copper mud that was generated at the
Pawtucket facility from 1992 to 1996?

A. No, I don't recall.

MR. COBURN: Off the record.
(Lunch break.)
BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. Were there any other manufacturing
processes at the Pawtucket facility than the
one -- other than the ones we discussed that
you can remember?

A. Yes. I doremember one other
process afier thinking about it, and that was a
process called bunching, BUNCHIN G. What
that was is it's very similar to taking a --
taking wire strands and braiding them like you
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Q. How?

A. Tdon't have the specific company,
but the drawing solution contained copper
fines, FINE S. That's fine particulates of
copper that are produced when you're drawing it
through the die and lubricating it. So over
the course of the year, you would get an oily
copper sludge at the bottom of the drawing
solution pit. What they would do is pump the
oil off the top of the -- off the top because
copper, obviously heavier than the oil, sinks
to the bottom.

So they would pump the clear or
the clean liquid, if you will -- I'll say
clean -- off the top into fifty-five-gallon
drums and dispose of it with a -- to a recycler
or send it to an oil recycler. The copper mud
is what they called the oily sludge, if you
will, in the bottom. It's called copper mud.
That would be shoveled out into
fifty-five-gallon drums, and those fifty-five-
gallon drums would be sent to the copper
recycler because that was worth a lot of money.

Q. Do you know how the drawing oil

was disposed of from the Pawtucket facility

DX J o bW

NN B R R R PR R s e
N OWwW®D®JIAAT e WNEFH O W

23
24
25

121

would hair or a rope because some products
don't, you know -- don't have the single

strand, they have the braided or bunched copper
wire as opposed to like a single strand wire

or, you know, of a certain gauge. So I believe
there were bunching machines also at Pawtucket.

Q. Other than the copper wire, were
there any other types of raw material involved
in the bunching process?

A. No.

Q. Any oils?

A. There would have been gear oil in
the drives because, you know, it takes motors
and heavy equipment to spin it and braid it.

Q. What types of waste would have
been generated as a result of this bunching
process?

A. Bunching would have generated --
generated gear oil when -- when it was changed
out for maintenance. That would pretty much be
the waste unless the lathes or the braids were
bad or broken, and then it would be disposed of
the copper as scrap copper and recycled.

Q. Can you estimate the monthly
volume of oil that was generated as waste as a
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1 part of the bunching process? 1 A. Tt was a--1Ibelieve it was a
2 MR. COBURN: Can vou just clarify 2 natural-type oil. Again, it wasn't something
3 what time period? 3 that was of any concern to me because it
4 BY MR.DANLEY: 4 wasn't -- it wasn't, you know, a hazardous
5 Q. From 1992 to 1996. 5 substance, so [ didn't pay a whole lot of
6 A. No. I'have noidea. It would 6 attention to it. But it's similar to like a
7 have depended how -- you know, how frequently 7 Wesson oil-type texture or what not. But,
8 the machine needed servicing. 8 again, you know, that's my familiarity. Back
9 Q. Now, before we broke, you listed 9 '92,'96, that's quite a few years ago, and it
10 several raw materials that were used at the 10 wasn't particularly memorable.
11 Pawtucket facility from 1992 to 1996. You 11 Q. In your experience, how much ink
12 mentioned drawing oil as one of these raw 12 would you estimate is used on a daily basis,
13 materials, correct? 13 assuming that the operations are running
14 A. Yes. 14 twenty-four hours a day, to mark the different
15 Q. Can you tell me what types of oils 15 intervals of copper or wire?
16 made up the drawing oil from 1992 to 1996 at 16 MR. COBURN: Where?
17 the Pawtucket facility? 17 MR. DANLEY: Anywhere.
18 A. 1don't recall specifically 18 MR. COBURN: Objection.
19 whether it was a vegetable oil or it was a 19 THE WITNESS: That's a --
20 synthetic oil. 20 BY MR.DANLEY:
21 Q. And why do you think it would have 21 Q. Let me withdraw the question.
22 been one or the other? 22 A. [ guess that's - okay. Go ahead.
23 A. Ithink that as time went on that 23 Q. Isaved you there. Assuming that
24 they've come up with some more sophisticated 24 there is a facility that runs twenty-four hours
25 synthetic oils as opposed to like a 25 aday, how much ink would be used on a daily
123 125
1 vegetable-type oil, maybe have better 1 basis to mark the different intervals of
2 properties or, you know, [ don't -- I'm not an 2 copper?
3 oil chemist so I'm not real sure of the exact 3 MR. COBURN: Objection.
4 reason, but they may hold up better or they may 4 THE WITNESS: Ireally can't answer
5 provide better lubrication or better heat 5 that question because it would depend on -- it
6 transfer so this -- the oils we use now are all 6 would depend on the product. Some products are
7 synthetic oils for drawing operations where we 7 very large and run slow. Some products are
8 have them. 8 slowly. Some products are small and run a much
9 Q. Generally, in your experience, 9 higher speed. It would depend on the product mix.
10 what time frame did the Pawtucket facility -- 10  There's no -- you know, there's no answer. 1
11 let me withdraw that question. Generally, in 11 really don't know how much ink we purchase during
12 your experience as an environmental healthand |12 ayear regardless, but it would be dependent, too,
13 safety person at General Cable, when did 13 upon the type of product being run --
14 facilities start making the transition from 14 BY MR. DANLEY:
15 vegetable oils to synthetic oils as part of 15 Q. Well, can you --
16 their manufacturing process or as part of 16 A. - and speeds.
17 their -- as part of running their plants? 17 Q. Can you use certain types of
18 MR. COBURN: Objection. 18 products that are manufactured at either the
19 THE WITNESS: Idon't recall. 19 Lincoln facility or were manufactured at the
20 Gradually over time, but I don't -- you know, it |20 Pawtucket facility and estimate the amount of
21 wasn't like all at once so I don't really recall. 21  ink that were used on those products?
22 BY MR. DANLEY: 22 A. Tjust don't have the knowledge to
23 Q. The vegetable oil you referred to 23 dothat.
24 earlier, what -- can you give me some specific 24 Q. Do you have knowledge about the
25 examples of what that would be? 25 amount of ink that was used on any of the

32 (Pages 122 to 125)

Veritext Corporate Services

800-567-8658

973-410-4040



126 128
1 products manufactured at the Lincoln facility 1 wire.
2 from 1975 to 19867 2 Q. Can you tell me how the PVC rosin
3 A. No. ' 3 was delivered to the Pawtucket facility from
4 Q. Do you have that type of knowledge 4 1992 to 19962
5 conceming the Lincoln facility after 19867 5 A. No. Idon't recall if it was in a
6 A. No. 6 gaylord, which is a large box, or if it was
7 Q. Now, you also said that there was 7  delivered in some other manner.
8 this solvent, and I wrote down the initials MEK 8 Q. Do you know how many dumpsters
9 that was used as a raw material at the 9  were at the Pawtucket facility from 1992 to
10 Pawtucket facility from 1992 to 1996. Is that 10 19967
11 accurate? 11 A. Irecall seeing two dumpsters or
12 A. Yes. MEK stands for methyl ethyl 12  roll-off bins at Pawtucket when I was there in
13 ketone. 13 1994 or 1995 as we were winding down the plant.
14 Q. And why was this solvent used as 14 I'mnot sure if there was an extra one brought
15 part of the manufacturing process at Pawtucket 15 in as we started to decommission the plants or
16 from 1992 to 19967 16 ifit had been there all along.
17 A. The -- that solvent was used with 17 Q. Do you know how many dumpsters
18 the inks. The carrier solvent for the ink - 18 were at the Pawtucket facility before 1994 or
19 and ink has, you know, solids and a carrier 19 1995?
20 solventinit. The carrier solvent in the inks 20 A. No, ] do not.
21 that were used during that time were primarily 21 Q. How big were the dumpsters that
22 methyl ethyl ketone or methyl isobutyl ketone. 22 you observed at the Pawtucket facility?
23 The inks were in one-gallon cans, 23 A. 1--1don' recall the
24 as]recall, and they were poured in the ink 24 dimensions. The reason I recall them is I
25 machine. Sometimes somebody may have leftthe |25 walked the river because we had the oil issue,
127 129
1 cap off one and solvent evaporated out, so they 1 and I recall seeing them, and -- but I don't --
2 had -- they had some containers of -- 2 I don't recall how big they were, whether they
3 one-gallon containers, as I recall, of methyl 3 were a roll-off bin, which might have been
4 ethyl ketone that they could use when the ink 4 twenty ten, or something like that, or if it
5 got a little bit thick or if they needed to 5 was a smaller size where the -- you know, where
6 thin it out a bit since that was the same 6 the prongs go in and they put it up. Ijust
7T carrier solvent, you know, used in the original 7 don'trecall.
8 canof ink. 8 Q. And were these dumpsters used to
9 Q. You also mentioned that PVC resin 9 dispose of the waste at the Pawtucket facility?
10 was used as part of the manufacturing process |10 A. 1would assume they were to
11 at the Pawtucket facility from 1992 to 1996, 11 dispose of waste. I'm not sure what waste was
12 correct? 12 disposed of.
13 A. Yes. 13 Q. Do you know any other disposal
14 Q. Can you give me a physical 14 methods at the Pawtucket facility from 1992 to
15 prescription of the PVC resin that was used at {15 19967
16 this facility from 1992 to 1996? 16 A. Iknow that the copper mud and oil
17 A. Tdon't--Idon't recall exactly 17 were sent to recyclers. As far as broken
18 what it looked like. Typically, PVC resin is 18 pallets, boxes, or whatever that the PVC resin
19 insmall -- small pellets, if you will, that 19 came in, that type of waste, office waste, that
20 are similar to like vermiculite that you put on 20 would have gone into -- that would have gone
21 your lawn or, you know, like the fertilizer 21 into the roll-off bin or the dumpster.
22 when you put on your lawn through a garden 22 Q. How were the cans of paint
23 applicator, you know, that type of thing. And {23 disposed of at the Pawtucket facility from 1992
24  that goes into the extruder and is melted 24 to 19967
25 and - in the extruder and extruded onto the 25 A. 1don't recall specifically.
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Q. Do you know how the cans of paint
were disposed of from the Pawtucket facility
before 19927

A. No, Ido not.

Q. How was -- how were the cans of
solvent disposed of at the Pawtucket facility
from 1992 to 1996?

A. The solvent -- if there was waste
ink, a little bit of ink in the bottom, it was
poured into a hazardous waste barrel and
collected and probably sent out. But there
again, you know, 1992, '3, '4, that period, |
don't -~ I don't recall if the operation was
primarily down to drawing. I think it was
probably almost all drawing and bunching, and I
don't even recall for sure if -- you know, if
there was very much extrusion going on or very
much -- so there wouldn't have been much need
for ink because we were kind of winding down
that process, that the ink -- you know, if
there wasn't anything left in the can, the can
or the solvent, the can, it would have probably
been put in the dumpster.

Q. Do you know how the cans of
solvent were disposed of at the Pawtucket
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in. 1believe that at our plants we -- we
safety cleaned, took it back, and recycled it
or, you know, there was a provider like that
that we used that's from the '90s on.

Q. Could there have been pieces of
wire disposed of at the Pawtucket facility from
1992 to 1996 in the dumpster?

A. Yes, there could have been small,
small pieces that weren't picked out that were
swept up with the dust.

Q. Could there have been PVC resin
that was disposed of in the form of pellets in
the Pawtucket facility before 1992 in the
dumpster?

MR. COBURN: Objection.

THE WITNESS: Again, I don't recall
and have much information at all about the process
before 1992, what was done, what was the quantity,
so I don't have a direct response on that.

BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. So you don't know whether pellets
could have been disposed of from the Pawtucket
facility during that facility's operation?

A. Ido not know definitively. I
don't have the direct knowledge. If floor
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facility before 19927

A. No. You know, typically, you use
it up but --

Q. Do you know how the number four or
number six fuel for the boiler at the Pawtucket
facility was disposed of before 19927

MR. COBURN: Objection.

THE WITNESS: 1 don't believe it was
disposed of. It was burnt. I mean, it's a fuel,
you know, so it's like having a propane tank at
your house or something where you use it up and
then put more in.

BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. Do you know how the drawing oil
was disposed of at the Pawtucket facility
before 19927

A. No. Idon't have any direct
knowledge of that.

Q. What types of substances were used
at the degreasing stand at the Pawtucket
facility from 1992 to 19967

A. Idon'trecall directly. I made a
comment that they did have a small maintenance
department and it would have been typical to
have a small stand that had degreasing solvent
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sweepings had a few pellets in it, the pellets
would be disposed with the floor sweepings
if -- we made every effort not to spill it
because you paid for it, and I'm sure that's
what they did, although I don't have direct
knowledge of that.

Q. Do you know if lamp parts were
ever produced at the Pawtucket facility?

A. Idon't have direct knowledge of
that. I think that it's very possible that
they could have produced the cord that was used
in a lamp, by a lamp being the -- like a drop
light that you use to provide light in an area,
it's essentially an extension cord with a
little housing over a light bulb that you can
hang and -- if you're going to work on your car
or work on something and want more light, so [
think they made cable for that, perhaps.

Q. Do you know if any rubber was
disposed of in the dumpster at the Pawtucket
facility before 19867

A. Idon't have any knowledge of
that.

Q. Would it stand to reason that
rubber was disposed of in the dumpster at the
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MR. DANLEY: During any time period.
THE WITNESS: No.
BY MR. DANLEY:

Q. Do you know the name of the waste
carrier that serviced the dumpsters at the
Pawtucket facility from 1992 to 1996?

A. No.

Q. Do you know the name of the waste
carrier that serviced the dumpster at the
Pawtucket facility at any time?

A. No.

Q. Do you know how often the
dumpsters at the Pawtucket facility were
serviced before 19867

A. No.

Q. Do you know where the waste
generated from the Pawtucket facility before
1986 was taken?

A. No.

Q. Let's talk about the Woonsocket
facility. Do you know when the Woonsocket
facility began operations?

A. No.

Q. Do you know when the operations at
the Woonsocket facility ceased?

134
1 Pawtucket facility before 1986? 1
2 MR. COBURN: Objection. You can 2
3 answer. 3
4 THE WITNESS: My familiarity with the | 4
5 Pawtucket plant had been a plant that was a 5
6 plastic plant, if you will, or a bare wire plant 6
7 that provided wire -- you know, wire to the other 7
8 assembly plants or provided plastic. I don't have 8
9 any recollection of rubber being at the Pawtucket 9
10 plant. 10
11 BY MR. DANLEY: 11
12 Q. Would it stand to reason that PVC 12
13 resin was disposed of in the dumpster at the 13
14 Pawtucket facility before 19862 14
15 MR. COBURN: Objection. 15
16 THE WITNESS: Again, [ don'thaveany |16
17 direct knowledge of what happened at that time. 17
18 BY MR. DANLEY: 18
19 Q. Inyour judgment, in all your 19
20 years as an employer responsibile for 20
21 environmental health and safety, things of that 21
22 nature, would it stand to reason that PVC resin 22
23  was disposed of in the dumpster at the 23
24  Pawtucket facility before 19867 24
25 MR. COBURN: Objection. Askedand |25
135
1 answered. 1
2 THE WITNESS: I'm -- 2
3 MR. COBURN: You can answer. 3
4 THE WITNESS: It would stand to 4
5 reason that if there were some pellets that were 5
6 spilled and/or perhaps got in, you know -- got 6
7  with other dust or other material, that it could 7
8 have been disposed of in a dumpster, but I don't 8
9 have any knowledge that that was the case. 9
10 BY MR.DANLEY: 10
11 Q. Let's go to the Lincoln 11
12 facility -~ back to the Lincoln facility for a 12
13 second. Were you aware that the Blackstone -- 13
14 orI'm sorry - were you aware that the - [ 14
15 can't pronounce this word. I'm going to 15
16 butcherit. Let's go off the record for a 16
17 second. 17
18 (Thereupon, an off-the-record 18
19 discussion was had.) 19
20 BY MR.DANLEY: 20
21 Q. For the Lincoln facility, were you 21
22 aware that the Narragansett Electric Company 22
23 had a substation adjacent to the Lincoln 23
24 facility? 24
25 MR. COBURN: During what time period? |25

137

A. Ibelieve they ceased in 1985.

Q. Do you know if the Woonsocket
facility was in operation at any point during
the 1970s?

A. Tbelieve it was.

Q. Do you know if the Woonsocket
facility was in operation in 1970?

A. Ibelieve it was.

Q. Do you know if the Woonsocket
facility was in operation in 1960?

A. ITdon't know.

Q. What is the earliest that you are
aware that the Woonsocket facility was in
operation?

A. With certainty, maybe the mid
80's. Ibelieve it's an old building and may
have been in operation in 1980 or 1970. 1
joined the company in the fall of '92. It was
in operation and the operation had been there
for a while. Idon't know when it started.

Q. What types of products were being
made at the Woonsocket facility when you
started working at General Cable?

MR. COBURN: Chris, I will just point
out that the Woonsocket facility is not one of the
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A. No, 1do not.

1 facilities identified in the notice of deposition. 1 Q. Allright. Let's go to another
2 You're certainly free to ask him questions about 2 facility then, shall we?
3 it, but - 3 MR. COBURN: You make it sound so
4 MR. DANLEY: Very good. Noted. 4 exciting, Chris.
5 THE WITNESS: The Woonsocket wasan | 5 MR. RISINGER: Dental work has the
6 assembly plant, and they - I recall they made a 6 same tone.
7 lot of what are called cord sets, and that's a 7 BY MR.DANLEY:
8 term we use in the industry for extension cords. 8 Q. Let's talk about the Taunton
9 So that's what they primarily -- they primarily 9 facility. Can you tell me when this facility
10 made. 10 began operations?
11 BY MR. DANLEY: 11 A. The year 1840 comes to mind, and
12 Q. Would it be similar to the process 12 I'mnot sure if that's when it was that the
13  at Lincoln? 13 building was built or that operations started
14 A. No. 14 there, but it's been a long time.
15 Q. Would this type of facility be 15 Q. Is the Taunton facility still in
16 where product from Lincoln was sent in order to 16 operation?
17 be finished? 17 A. No, it is not.
18 A. It would have been -- 1 don't know 18 Q. When did activities cease at the
19 if Lincoln would have sent product there. It's 19 Taunton facility?
20 atype of plant that Pawtucket would have sent 20 A. 2003 or'4.
21 product to potentially. 21 Q. Since you've been with General
22 Q. Can you tell me the types of raw 22 Cable, can you tell me what types of products
23 materials used at Woonsocket? 23 were being produced at the Taunton facility?
24 A. Woonsocket would have used some -- 24 A. The Taunton facility had PVC,
25 I believe some PVC resin because they -- they 25 polyvinyl chloride compounder and so they made
139 141
1 molded the end of the extension cord and cable. 1 compounds for other General Cable facilities.
2 They would have had blades, you know, the metal 2 They also drew down copper, and so they
3 blades in an extension cord, the prongs, they 3 provided bare wire and bunched wire similar to
4 would have had that, and it would have been, 4 Pawtucket to other General Cable facilities.
5 you know, molded to the end of the extension 5 Q. Do you know if these were the
6 cords. They would have used oil for -- you 6 types of operations at the Taunton facility
7 know, in the machines. 7 from - or during the relevant period?
8 They would have used small 8 A. To the best of my knowledge,
9 quantities of paint just for the maintenance of 9 though I do not have any direct involvement
10 the facility. They would have used, you know, 10 before 1992.
11 maybe a lubricating oil for a piece of 11 Q. But to the best of your knowledge,
12 equipment. They would have used boxes to 12 these were the types of facilities at the
13 package the cords in. There would have been a 13 Taunton -- or these were the types of activity
14  lot of boxes. 14 at the Taunton facility during the relevant
15 Q. Do you know how many dumpsters 15 period?
16 were at the Woonsocket facility at any time? 16 A. Yes.
17 A. No. 17 Q. Can you tell me the types of raw
18 Q. Do you know who serviced the 18 materials that were delivered to Taunton in
19 dumpsters at the Woonsocket facility at any 19 order to undertake these processes?
20  time? 20 A. There would have been PVC resin.
21 A. No, I do not. 21 There would be plasticizer coils. There would
22 Q. Do you know where the waste from 22 have been antioxidants. There would have been
23 the Woonsocket facility was disposed of at any 23 fillers. There would have been flame
24 time? 24 retardants. There would have been colorants.
25 MR. RISINGER: I'm sorry. You said
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1 colorants? 1 maintenance and operation of that facility in

2 THE WITNESS: Colorants. 2 general and not really tied to a particular

3 MR. RISINGER: Thanks. 3 product. Are there similar type substances,

4 THE WITNESS: I wonder if that's a 4  raw products, that were sent to Taunton in

5 word. 5 order to maintain and operate that facility?

6 BY MR.DANLEY: 6 A. Yeah, I omitted one. I omitted

7 Q. Colorants? 7 copper rod, which, obviously, I should - if

8 MR. RISINGER: I think it is. 8 we're going to draw copper, you need the rod to

9 THE WITNESS: Colorants. 9 draw down. So there was copper rod. There --
10 MR. RISINGER: I just didn't hear it. 10 the plant was involved in PVC compounding and,
11 BYMR.DANLEY: 11 you know, the bare wire production or bunched
12 Q. Any other raw materials delivered 12 wire production, so it really focused on those
13 to the Taunton facility in order to manufacture 13 things. It was a plant that fed other plants.

14  products? 14 Q. Were any types of inks sent to the

15 A. They would have had the fuel oil 15 Taunton facility during the relevant period?

16 for, you know, the boiler, number four, number 16 A. Not to the best of my knowledge,

17 six, fuel oil. Mostly, I think, it was number 17 no.

18 six in most of our New England plants, whichis |18 Q. Were any types of inks sent to the

19 amore viscus oil. They would have had that. 19 Taunton facility at any time?

20 They would have had gear box oil. They would 20 A. Idon't have any knowledge that

21 have had a small maintenance shop, again, where |21 they were.

22 you've still got the same type of maybe a stick 22 Q. Did the Taunton facility ever

23 welder or, you know, put up a bracket to do 23 receive any type of paint while you were there?

24  something with, and they would have had a small {24 A. Trecall that there were a few

25 degreasing tank. They would have had draw 25  cans of paint in the maintenance shop, gray
143 ' 145

1 solution oil. They would have had some sort 1 paint or something, to paint a piece of

2 of --Icall it SpeedyDry, but some sort of 2 equipment or something to paint, you know, if a

3 absorbent material to clean up a spill. 3 column got dinged or something.

4 Q. What types of raw material were 4 Q. How big is the Taunton facility?

5 sent to Taunton in order to operate and 5 A. Tdon't recall.

6 maintain that facility aside from the 6 Q. Isit a city block?

7 manufacturing process? 7 A. No. It's smaller than that.

8 MR. COBURN: Objection. 8 Q. Halfa block?

9 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat that | 9 A. Yeah. That's probably -- maybe
10 or-- 10 not quite that big. A hundred fifty thousand
11 BY MR. DANLEY: 11 square feet maybe. It's just a real rough
12 Q. Yes. Absolutely. Withdraw the 12 estimate. You know, I don't know what the
13 question. What types of raw materials other |13 total space is.

14 than the ones you just mentioned were sentto |14 Q. Did this facility just consist of

15 the Taunton facility for the maintenance and |15 one building?

16 operation of that facility? 16 A. Yes.

17 MR. COBURN: Objection. 17 Q. How many floors were there to this
18 BY MR. DANLEY: 18 building?

19 Q. Here's what I'm getting at. For 19 A. There was -- there were two

20 Lincoln we talked about the raw products that |20 floors. There was an office up on the second
21 were sent to that facility in order to make 21 floor, but the floors weren't -- it wasn't like
22 that product. 22 abig box store like Best Buy, if you put a
23 A. Oh, okay. 23 floor in the middle and had an upstairs and a
24 Q. And you talked about the raw 24 downstairs. There was, you know, one section
25 products that were used just for the 25 that had an upper level for offices, and you
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1 kind of dropped down and there was a production | 1 it was liquid.
2 area, but then there was -- there were a couple 2 Q. How were the plasticizer oils
3 mezzanines to be able to get to service the 3 delivered to the Taunton facility?
4 compounding equipment. So it's -~ 4 A. They were delivered by -- this is,
5 Q. Would it be fair to say that the 5 you know, my recollection when I was involved
6 production operations were on one floor only? 6 with it. They were delivered in, you know, a
7 A. Well, the production for the bare 7 tanker truck and put into the bulk tanks.
8 wire and the bunched wire and the drawing were 8 Q. And just so the recollection is
9 onone floor. That would be fair to say. The 9 clear when you're testifying as to your
10 offices were in one area on a floor. The 10 personal knowledge on the Taunton facility,
11 compounding equipment was taller than one 11 what time frame does that encompass?
12 floor, so it -- to get to the top of it or to 12 A. 19 --19 - well, 2003 to 1995.
13 getto the middle of it, you had a mezzanine 13 Q. Do you know how PVC resin was
14 that was kind of built around it. So that 14  delivered to the Taunton facility from --
15 wasn't the whole plant. That was just in the 15 during the relevant period?
16 area where the compounders were. 16 A. No.
17 Q. How tall were these compounding 17 Q. Do you know how the plasticizer
18 equipment? 18 oils were delivered to the Taunton facility
19 A. Idon't I don't recall exactly 19 during the relevant period?
20 how tall the compounder was because it wasn't 20 A. No.
21 all the way to the ground. It was -- it was 21 Q. Do you have any reason to believe
22 up. Ijust don't recall. 22  that the plasticizer oils or PVC resin was
23 Q. Twenty feet? 23 delivered -- I'll withdraw that question. What
24 A. T'm trying to picture -- twenty 24 types of plasticizer oils were used at the
25 feet might be about right. 25 Taunton facility from 1995 to 20037
147 149
1 Q. Was there more than one piece of 1 A. Ibelieve they were phthalates.
2 compounding equipment? 2 Q. What types of plasticizer oils
3 A. TIbelieve there were two. 3 were used at the Taunton facility during the
4 Q. Allright. Let's go back to the 4 relevant period?
5 raw material that was used at the Taunton 5 A. Tdon't have any knowledge of
6 facility that you mentioned. You said PVC 6 that.
7 resin was used, correct? 7 Q. What type of antioxidants were
8 A. That's correct. 8 used at the Taunton facility from 1995 to 20037
9 Q. Can you give me a physical 9 A. Idon't recall specifically. Ido
10 description of this substance that was used at |10 have an addition to make, if I -- did I
11 the Taunton facility? 11 indicate stabilizers were used as well?
12 A. Tbelieve it was -- I believe it 12 Q. No.
13 was in a bulk storage tank that was fed in, but 13 A. Tknow we went through a whole
14 Tdon't --don't recall - 14 list, but stabilizers were used as well.
15 Q. So-- 15 Q. Do you know what types of
16 A. -- with certainty. 16 antioxidants were used at the Taunton facility
17 Q. --you believe that the PVC resin 17  during the relevant period?
18 was-- 18 A. No, I do not.
19 A. Fed in with a bulk -- yes, from a 19 Q. Do you know if there were any
20 bulk tank. 20 changes in the raw material that was used at
21 Q. From a bulk tank. What did the 21 the Taunton facility during the relevant period
22 PVCresin look like? 22 as compared to the raw materials used at the
23 A. ldon'trecall. 23 Taunton facility from 1995 to 20037
24 Q. Was it powder form? 24 A. Tdon't have any knowledge of
25 A. I1don' believe so, no. 1 believe 25 that.
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1 Q. What types of fillers were used at 1 Q. What types of stabilizers were
2 the Taunton facility from 1995 to 2003? 2 used at the Taunton facility from 1995 to 20037
3 A. Tbelieve they were clays, to the 3 A. We used zinc and lead stabilizers.
4 best of my knowledge. 4 Q. What types of stabilizers were
5 Q. Any others? 5 used at the Taunton facility during the
6 A. No. 6 relevant period?
7 Q. What types of flame retardants 7 A. Idon't have any knowledge of
8 were used as raw material at the Taunton 8 that, direct knowledge.
9 facility from 1995 to 2003? 9 Q. Do you know how much gear box oil
10 A. I believe there's an antimon oxide 10 is used on a monthly basis -- was used on a
11 that was used or antimon compounds were usedas {11 monthly basis at the Taunton facility from 1995
12 flame retardants. 12 t02003?
13 Q. What types of fillers were used at 13 A. No,Idon't.
14 the Taunton facility during the relevant 14 Q. So would it be fair to say that
15 period? 15 the PVC resin, plasticizer oils, antioxidants,
16 A. 1don't have any knowledge of that 16 filler, flame retardants, colorants and
17  during the period. Most likely the same type. 17 stabilizers were used to make the PVC
18 Q. What type of flame retardants were 18 compounds?
19 used at the Taunton facility during the 19 A. It would be fair to say that
20 relevant period? 20 generally that's what PVC compound is, you
21 A. Don't have any knowledge of that. 21 know -- the main ingredients in a PVC compound.
22 Q. What types of colorants were used 22 Q. Are there any other ingredients
23 at the Taunton facility from 1995 to 2003? 23 for the PVC compounds that were used at the
24 A. Idon't recall the specifics. 24  Taunton facility?
25 They were used in small amounts that -- you 25 A. Idon't recall any.
151 153
1 know, various dyes and what not. I -- but I 1 Q. Canyou give me the percentage of
2 don't recall the specific compounds. They're 2 each of these materials that would — that
3 rather complex compounds. 3 would comprise the PVC compounds?
4 Q. When you say they're rather 4 A. Tl preface it by saying I'm not
5 complex, what does that mean? 5 aPVCchemist. In general, you would have --
6 A. Well, the names are -- I mean, 6 resin would be -- it will be almost reversed
7 they're an azo dye or they're some -- 7 from the rubber where resin would be the fifty
8 they're -- they're I want to say chemically 8 or sixty percent component, the filler would be
9 complex. They're -- they're names that aren't 9 the twenty to thirty percent component, and the
10 common because they're -- you know, like the 10 oil would be the ten percent component. Any
11 normal calcium carbonate, that type of thing. 11 colorant or additives or stabilizers,
12 They're much longer -- they're longer names and {12 antioxidants, flame retardants, would be a very
13 I'm not-- not a chemist into that. We use 13 small percentage -- small being one percent,
14 small amounts, and they were dyes or various 14 two percent. It would be low.
15 colorants. Ijust don't have much more to add 15 Q. Do you have any reason to believe
16 tothat. 16 that the makeup of the PVC compounds was
17 Q. Were any of those types of 17 different in terms of the percentages you just
18 materials on material safety data sheets from 18 mentioned during the relevant time period?
19 1995 to 2003? 19 MR. COBURN: Objection.
20 A. I'm sure they probably were. 20 THE WITNESS: We were always -~
21 Q. What types of colorants were used 21 General Cable's always worked to, you know,
22  at the Taunton facility during the relevant 22 improve the compound so it extrudes better, it's
23 period? 23 processed better. And as the years have gone by,
24 A. Thave no idea. have no direct 24 you know, we've taken - for instance, this is
25 knowledge of that. 25 recent. We've taken lead out of almost all of our
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1 PVC compounds. You know, there's been some 1 knowledge, delivered in bags.

2 changes in flame retardants. So it's like -- as 2 Q. How were the flame retardants

3 with rubber, you know, you're making -- you're 3 delivered to the Taunton facility during the

4 working to improve it. So I really can't say 4 relevant period?

5 that it's not fair to say that it would have been 5 A. T don't have any knowledge of

6 the same. It is fair to say that the compound 6 that.

7 generally has those type of components, the 7 Q. From 1995 to 2003, can you

8 mixtures or -- like when we replaced lead, we 8 describe the bags in which the flame retardants

9 replaced it with a zinc steroid, I believe. So, 9 were delivered?
10 you know, those type of things changed some. 10 A. Idon'trecall. They were
11 BY MR. DANLEY: 11 fifty-pound -- fifty-pound bags or -- but I
12 Q. During the relevant period, did 12 don't recall whether they were, you know, a
13 PVC resin make up fifty to sixty percent of the 13 plastic-type bag or whether they were more of a
14 PVC compounds made at that facility? 14 paper-type bag, and it may have changed during
15 A. Treally have no information on 15 the period.
16 what occurred before I joined the company in 16 Q. From 1995 to 2003, how were the
17 '92 onthat. SoIdon't--Idon't have those 17 antioxidants delivered to the Taunton facility?
18 specifics. I was trying to be, you know, 18 A. Would have been in bags.
19 responsive and give you a general idea what's 19 Q. Can you describe those bags?
20 in them, but I don't have the specifics before 20 A. Again, they would have been
21 92, 21 approximately fifty pounds, to the best of my
22 MR. DANLEY: Can we go offtherecord [22 knowledge.
23 for a second? 23 Q. Do you know how the antioxidants
24 (Thereupon, an off-the-record 24  were delivered to the Taunton facility during
25 discussion was had.) 25 the relevant period?

155 157

1 BY MR. DANLEY: 1 A. I@don't have any knowledge of

2 Q. During the relevant period did 2 that.

3 plasticizer oils make up approximately ten 3 Q. How were the fillers delivered to

4 percent of the PVC compounds at the Taunton 4 the Taunton facility from 1995 to 20037

5 facility? 5 A. Tbelieve they were in bags as

6 A. Thave no direct knowledge of 6 well

7 that. 7 Q. Can you describe those bags?

8 Q. During the relevant time period, 8 A. Ibelieve those bags were — were

9 did fillers comprise twenty to thirty percent 9 paper -- paper-type, heavy paper bag, but I
10 of'the PVC compound made at the Taunton 10 don't -- you know, I don't have any other
11 facility? 11 recollection.
12 A. Thave no direct knowledge of 12 Q. Were they fifty-pound-type bags?
13 that. 13 A. Yes.
14 Q. During the relevant time period, 14 Q. Do you know how the fillers were
15 did antioxidants, flame retardants, colorants, 15 delivered to the Taunton facility during the
16 and stabilizers comprise approximately one to 16 relevant period?
17 two percent of the PVC compounds made at the |17 A. No. Idon't have any knowledge of
18 Taunton facility? 18 that.
19 A. Idon't have any direct 19 Q. How were the colorants delivered
20 information on that. 20  to the Taunton facility from 1995 to 2003?
21 Q. How were the flame retardants 21 A. Idon't know.
22 delivered to the Taunton facility? 22 Q. Do you know how the colorants were
23 A. During what period? 23 delivered to the Taunton facility during the
24 Q. From 1995 to 2003. 24 relevant period?
25 A. They were, to the best of my 25 A. No, I do not.
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1 Q. Do you know how the stabilizers 1 discovered that there had been a plasticizer
2 were delivered to the Taunton facility during 2 leak that occurred over time, and the
3 the relevant period? 3 plasticizer oil was in the ground, and we had
4 A. No, I do not. 4 to remediate quite a bit of soil, so it had
5 Q. Do you know how the stabilizers 5 been a leak that occurred over time that -- and
6 were delivered to the Taunton facility from 6 we also found a tank that had been buried, you
7 1995 to 2003? 7 know, and kind of left there in place that had
8 A. To the best of my knowledge, they 8 some plasticizer oil. So it was it was a
9 were in bags at first. The same type of -- 9 historic-type spill that occurred over time. I
10 like a paper - I'm not sure if it was a 10 don't know, again, the number of years, but it
11 plastic or a paper. I think it was a heavy 11 obviously wasn't addressed, and we addressed it
12 paper-type bag. Then they were -- we switched |12 during the decommissioning in '96, '97, you
13 to -- started getting what are called super 13 know, those type of years.
14 sacks, which are big, big sacks and then -- 14 Q. How was the SpeedyDry disposed of?
15 then I think they switched to consumable bags 15 A. Idon't recall.
16 where the whole bag was put in the process and |16 Q. Do you know how many dumpsters
17 the bag was -- was consumed with the 17 were at the Taunton facility from 1995 to 2003?
18 processing. It didn't contaminate the resin 18 A. Trecall seeing one, but [ don't
19 that was formed. 19 know if there were any others.
20 Q. So as best you can remember, the 20 Q. Do you know how many dumpsters
21 stabilizers were initially delivered to the 21 were at the Taunton facility during the
22 Taunton facility in heavy paper bags? 22 relevant period?
23 MR. COBURN: Objection. Clarify 23 A. No, I donot.
24  initially. 24 Q. Do you know who the waste carrier
25 MR. DANLEY: Isaid as he can 25 was who serviced any dumpsters at the Taunton
159 161
1 remember. 1 facility during the relevant period?
2 MR. COBURN: Okay. 2 A. Ibelieve I recall reading in the
3 THE WITNESS: When I first joined the 3 104(e) response that the facility had a truck
4 company, I remember that they were delivered in 4 and disposed of their waste until the early
5 bags, heavy paper-type bags. 5 '70s, and after that time I don't have any
6 BY MR. DANLEY: 6 other information.
7 Q. Do you know the approximate 7 Q. Do you know who was responsible
8 monthly volume of these types of materials that 8 for that statement in the 104(e) response
9 were delivered to the Taunton facility from 9 regarding Taunton having its own truck?
10 1995 to 20037 10 A. No.
11 A. No, Idonot. 11 Q. Do you know if that's true about
12 Q. Do you know the approximate 12 whether or not Taunton had its own truck
13 monthly volume of these types of materials that 13  that -- that carried waste in the '70s?
14  were delivered to the Taunton facility during 14 A. No, I don't know if it's true.
15 the relevant period? 15 Q. Do you know where the waste
16 A. No, Idonot. 16 generated at the Taunton facility during the
17 Q. Were there spills of oil at any 17 relevant period was disposed of?
18 time from 1995 to 2003 at the Taunton facility? 18 A. No, Ido not.
19 A. Yes. 19 Q. Okay. Can you walk me through
20 Q. How were those spills cleaned up? 20  what happens when the Taunton facility receives
21 A. As with Pawtucket, I'm going to 21 the raw materials to make PVC compounds and how
22 give you a two-part answer. The first part of 22 they are used to actually make the product?
23 the answer is a normal -~ a machine-type spill 23 MR. COBURN: Based on his -
24 would be cleaned up with SpeedyDry. We also 24 MR. DANLEY: Yeah. From 1995 to
25 had -- when we decommissioned the plant, we 25 2003,
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THE WITNESS: I'm trying to recall
since it's been -- it's been a number of years at
Taunton. And to be -- I know the plasticizer
was -- was received in -~ plasticizer oil was
received in a bulk tank that was pumped in, and I
know the resin was pumped in also bulk. I don't
recall, again, if the resin was solid or if it was
liquid. I indicated that I believed it was
liquid, but I honestly don't recall.

But it came in from a bulk, and those
were fed -- those were -- the majority of the
products were fed into the -~ into the -- into the
PVC compound mixer. The antioxidants, colorants,
flame retardants, and fillers were put into a
hopper in a manner similar to that done at Lincoln
where the bags were kind of, you know, on a little
roller or something and then they were slit, and
they're kind of slit over the hopper and dumped,
shaken, dumped. And then the mixing occurs, and I
don't know how long the mixing -- mixing takes.
But when the PVC was extruded out, it was
pelletized, and I believe it was put into gaylord
size boxes in -- to be shipped out to the

locations.
BY MR. DANLEY:
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of -- that were used for various compounds that
I indicated. There would be broken pallets. A
lot of the bags were -- would be shipped in on
apallet. As pallets were damaged, those would
be disposed of. There would be some broken
reels, probably —

Q. Broken reels of?

A. If you had a wooden reel or if you
had a steel reel where it became damaged, it
would be disposed of, and I could add that that
comment was one I did not make for Pawtucket or
for Lincoln, but any place where you use
reels -- if I can add to my previous testimony,
any place where you have reels and you have a
reel, a flange breaks off or something breaks
off, that would be disposed of typically in a
roll-off bin unless you would send the reel to
a reel refurbisher. Those would have been --
let's see. The gaylord boxes, office waste,
those would have been the primary waste
products.

Q. You mentioned empty bags would be
generated as a result of this process, correct?

A. Yes, 1did.

Q. Would that b